
FY 2018-2019 PUBLIC SERVICES FUNDING APPLICATION 

Date Submitted by Applicant: Click here to enter text. 

Date Received by City: 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Organization/Agency Name: Broward Partnership for the Homeless, Inc. 

Funding Requested: $50,000 Number of Clients To Be Served: 1,000 

Select One Public Service Activity / Category Name Below: 

☐ Economic Empowerment/Development Program ☐ Health Care and Substance Abuse Program 

☐ Education Program (including childcare and the like) ☐ Recreation Program 

☒ Emergency Food and Shelter Program ☐ Other (Identify the Activity / Service: 

☐ Grassroots Community Projects in Eligible Click here to enter text. 

Neighborhoods 

Select one HUD National Objective below: 

☒ Benefit to low- and moderate- income (LMI) persons 

☐ Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

☐ Urgent Need 

Address Where Public Service Activity To Be Administered: 920 NW 7th Ave., Ft. Laud., FL 33311

Primary Contact Person: Tom Campbell 
Title: Chief Operating Officer 

Agency Address: 920 Northwest 7th Avenue
City: Fort Lauderdale 
Zip Code: 33311 

Phone #: (954) 779-3990 

Fax #: (954) 779-7349 
E-mail: tcampbell@bphi.org 

Printed Name of Authorized Official Signing: Frances M. Esposito 

Title of Authorized Official Signing: Chief Executive Officer 

Employer Identification Number (EIN): 

65-0777033 
Dun & Bradstreet Number (DUNS)

1
: 

025654083 

CENTRAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION (CCR)
2
 ☒Yes ☐ No 

1 All recipients who are awarded federal funding must have a DUNS Number. To request a DUNS Number, access: http://mycredit.dnb.com/establish-your- 
business/ 

2 All recipients who are awarded federal funding must be registered on the CCR website prior to receiving a grant. Once a DUNS Number has been obtained you 
must register at https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/#1 

PLEASE NOTE: CDBG funds cannot be used to purchase equipment, machinery, software or vehicles. 
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Section #1: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (limit 2000 characters) 

 

Include a project overview of the services to be provided and the planned recipients (target 

population(s)) of the service (i.e. youth, homeless, disabled, etc.). 

 

The Broward Partnership respectfully requests $50,000 to cover costs associated with providing meals and 
transportation services for the target population – individuals and families experiencing homelessness who 
are residing at the Central Homeless Assistance Center (CHAC) in Fort Lauderdale. This request includes 
$35,000 towards the provision of three nutritious meals per day, seven days per week, for the men, 
women, and children residing at the shelter, as well as $15,000 to cover costs associated with the purchase 
of bus passes for participants who have no other means of transportation to attend to various life needs, 
such as job interviews, employment, medical and legal appointments, and searching for housing 
opportunities within the community. 

 
The CHAC is a 57,000 square foot, 230-bed emergency shelter situated on 2.7 acres on Sunrise Boulevard 
and NW 7th Avenue near downtown Fort Lauderdale. The CHAC serves approximately 1,200 unduplicated 
individuals experiencing homelessness (defined as HUD Low Income) each year, including men, women, 
and children. The program is available for all persons experiencing homelessness in Broward County, 
Florida, although the majority of participants have experienced homelessness in the City of Fort 
Lauderdale within a two-mile radius of the center. The program provides short-term housing and 
supportive services, including meals, clothing, case management, job development, housing search 
assistance, access to transportation, and primary health, oral health, and behavioral health care. The 
average length of stay is approximately 60 days for individuals and 90 days for families with children. 
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Section #2: STATEMENT OF NEED (limit 6000 characters) 

 

Describe the Fort Lauderdale community’s need for your project. Include information on the history 

and severity of the need in this city and, if applicable previous successful or unsuccessful attempts to 

meet these needs. Provide specifics regarding the demographics of the population to be served 

including the number of people experiencing this need and their location. NOTE: If you are targeting 

the homeless population, please attach data that deals with homeless statistics in Fort Lauderdale, 

crime rate for applicants providing those types of services, drop-out rate, pregnancy rate should be 

placed as attachment B9. 

 

The target population for this project is persons experiencing homelessness in the City of Fort Lauderdale. 
According to the point-in-time census and survey conducted in January 2017 by the Broward Regional 
Health Planning Council and Broward County Homeless Initiative Partnership, there were 2,450 individuals 
and family members experiencing homelessness in Broward County on that particular day. This total 
included 1,094 individuals and 386 families living in emergency shelters, , transitional facilities and safe 
havens, and 929 unsheltered individuals and 27 families living on the streets, in cars, or in other places not 
meant for human habitation. In the City of Fort Lauderdale specifically, the point in time count revealed 
that there were a total of 452 unsheltered individuals, representing 51% of Broward County’s total 
unsheltered population. The need for crisis and emergency shelter services has continued to grow in 
Broward County, due largely to a documentable shortage of affordable housing options, as well as barriers 
such as unemployment, underemployment, lack of childcare, mental health or substance abuse issues, and 
medical and physical issues. Additional information regarding the point in time count is included as 
Attachment B9a. 
 
According to the City of Fort Lauderdale’s 2017 Community Survey, presented by the ETC Institute, 75% of 
respondents considered homelessness to be a major problem. Additional results of the survey include: 

 How often respondents observed homeless people in the following Fort Lauderdale areas:  
o Downtown: 81% 
o Parks: 69% 
o Commercial areas: 56% 
o Other areas: 56% 
o Beaches: 55% 
o Neighborhood where they live: 52% 

 Support for the City doing the following to address homelessness: 
o Providing grants to non-profit organizations who provide services to the homeless in Ft. 

Lauderdale: 52%  
o Developing new (and/or expanding existing) homeless shelters in Fort Lauderdale: 46% 

 
A copy of the Community Survey is included as Attachment B9b. 
 
Since April 2016, the CHAC has received inquiries from more than 600 families seeking emergency shelter, 
all of which originated within the central Broward County and greater Fort Lauderdale area. At the time of 
this application there were more than 260 homeless families with children on the County’s family crisis 
shelter wait list. For families experiencing homelessness, episodes of homelessness greatly increase the 
likelihood that families will separate or dissolve. This negative outcome is exacerbated by the fact that most 
of these families are led by new or young mothers who recently suffered a dramatic life-changing event, 
such as the loss of a partner, loss of employment, or a catastrophic health issue. Families living on the 
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streets can also include infants, children with disabilities, pregnant women, as well as two-parent families. 
Every homeless family struggles to maintain normalcy and is at a very high risk for instability, which can 
affect the health, well-being and development of the children. 

From a public health perspective, conditions such as diabetes, hypertension, asthma, COPD, diseases of the 
liver or kidneys, oral diseases, substance abuse and mental health disorders are more prevalent and 
typically more severe among those experiencing homelessness, in addition to trauma, injuries and physical 
ailments. Persons experiencing homelessness are also often seen with cognitive impairments associated 
with traumatic brain injury, mental illness, chronic substance abuse, infection, strokes or developmental 
disabilities which make it difficult to access and manage treatment on their own. The complexity of the 
health and social status of persons who are poor and homeless presents a multitude of issues that require 
creative solutions. Because persons experiencing homelessness often relegate health care to a lower 
priority before the basic human needs for food, clothing, and shelter, easily treatable conditions quickly 
become exacerbated. As a result, persons experiencing homelessness often seek treatment for complex 
problems in emergency rooms, putting additional strain on the County’s overburdened system. 
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Section #3: PROGRAM DESCRIPTION (limit of 6000 characters)

Describe how the proposed project will address the need as stated on previous page and identify how 

input and support has been obtained from the impacted community. If other agencies are currently 

providing a service to address this need, explain how your approach or program will improve or 

expand the provision of services. 

In 1997, the Broward Partnership was charged by the Broward County Commission with raising the initial 
funds for, constructing and subsequently operating a new emergency homeless shelter to replace the 
“Tent City” homeless encampment, where approximately 400 individuals had been living for more than 
five years. Two years later, the Partnership opened the Center, a 57,000 sq. foot facility situated on 2.3 
acres near downtown Fort Lauderdale. Since that day, the Partnership has provided shelter, food, 
supportive services, and housing placement to more than 24,000 individuals and families experiencing 
homelessness. 

Every client is assigned to a case manager and develops a solutions-focused service plan incorporating the 
client’s personal goals. Case managers arrange, coordinate, monitor, support, evaluate and advocate for 
the clients, using evidenced-based, therapeutic practices such as Motivational Interviewing, to strengthen 
an individual's motivation for and movement toward a specific goal within an atmosphere of acceptance 
and compassion. The overarching goal is to optimize clients’ functioning by enhancing developmental, 
problem- solving and coping capacities while providing resources and linking participants with needed 
services such as the Homeless Education Program, food stamps, TANF, Social Security Income/Social 
Security Disability Income and Medicaid eligibility workers, long-term health care, and legal aid services to 
help them overcome their homelessness. 

Internal services offered by the Partnership include: 

 Food Services - provides three nutritious meals per day for as many as 1,400 unique individuals
throughout the year. The Center may serve 400 additional individuals each year during cold weather
emergencies when it opens additional emergency overnight capacity for people living on the streets.

 Workforce development – vocational assistance, training/education, mentoring, job search assistance, and
referrals for job placement

 Healthcare services – primary care and dental care

 Behavioral health services – diagnosis, treatment, prevention, intervention and treatment for
substance abuse, mental health, and co-occurring disorders

 Family services – individual, couples and family therapy, family enrichment activities, training to
develop parenting skills and coping techniques, access to child care, transportation of children to their
school of origin

 Referrals to external services provided by CoC partner members, such as Broward Behavioral
Health Coalition, Broward Health, and other community partners

The Partnership participates with numerous other agencies within the CoC. The Center coordinates the 
placement of all individuals into the shelter through the TaskForce outreach teams and the placement of 
families through the Homeless Helpline. The Partnership is active with the Broward Behavioral Health 
Coalition and makes regular referrals for substance abuse and mental health treatment services to 
agencies such as Broward Addiction Recovery Center, Henderson Behavioral Health, and Susan B. Anthony 
Recovery Center. The Partnership actively works with other housing providers in the CoC, including Hope 
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South Florida, United Way’s Mission United for Veterans, Broward Housing Solutions, and Broward County 
Housing Authority. All clients are referred to Broward Health’s Healthcare for the Homeless program. Staff 
maintains active roles on various CoC committees, and the Chief Operating Officer holds a seat on the CoC 
Advisory Board to the Board of County Commissioners. The Chief Development Officer is the Chair of the 
Broward County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners. 
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PROGRAM DESCRIPTION CHART 

GOAL OBJECTIVE ACTIVITIES TIMELINE 
MEASURABLE 

OUTCOME 

To improve clients' self Clients will develop a service Clients meet regularly with Ongoing from start of At least 80% of 

sufficiency plan in partnership with their case manager and other project period – 60 clients who are 

case manager. supportive staff. day average stay for identified as head of 

Clients participate in activities individuals and 90- household will achieve at 

on and off campus day average stay for least one (1) goal as 

families indicated on his/her 

individual service plan. 

To improve clients' self Clients will transition to a Clients meet regularly with Ongoing from start of At least 35% of  

sufficiency stable housing situation. case manager and other project period – 60 unduplicated clients 

supportive staff. day average stay for will exit to stable 

Clients participate in activities individuals and 90- housing  

on and off campus day average stay for 

families 

To increase access to Clients have access to bus Clients will receive assistance Ongoing from start of At least 50% of 

transportation passes. to travel to jobs, interviews, project period. clients will receive a 

community service providers bus pass for travel to 

and medical appointments employment activities (job; 

job search; job interview); 

medical appointments; 

legal obligations; housing 

search and other service 

plan oriented 

appointments. 
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EVALUATION 
 

For each goal listed in the Program Description Chart and using the chart below detail how you will evaluate the effectiveness of the program 

including how you will measure the achievement of the planned outcomes, and how and when you will report the program outcomes to the grantor. 

 

GOAL EVALUATION METHOD 
COMPLETION 

DATE 
REPORTING MECHANISM 

To improve clients’ self- 

sufficiency  

Initial intake assessment, Integrated 

Treatment and Community Service 

Plan (ITCSP), and weekly case 

management meetings 

Prior to discharge Initial assessments are completed at intake. The 

ITCSP is developed within seven (7) days of 

admission and established individualized goals. 

Progress is reviewed by a Treatment Team and 

the case manager completes updates and 

modifications.  Monthly reporting is entered 

into the Homeless Management Information 

System (HMIS) and the AWARDS electronic 
health records system. 

To increase access to 

transportation 

Strengths and needs identified via an 

assessment and development of 

ITCSP 

Within seven (7) days 

of admission and as 

need identified 

Initial assessments are completed at intake; bus 

pass logs are maintained by staff and reflect the 

date, the client’s name, the purpose for the bus 

pass, along with the client's signature, 

acknowledging the receipt of the bus pass 
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Section #4: PROJECT BENEFIT (limit of 6000 characters) 

 

Using data and research explain how the project is expected to result in long term as well as short- 

term benefit. Include both an overview of the scope of services to be provided as well as specific 

information as to the goals, objectives, activities, timelines and measurable outcomes for the project, 

using the chart below. 

 

Homeless shelters provide individuals and families experiencing homelessness with safety and protection 
from exposure to the weather while simultaneously providing for basic human needs and reducing the 
environmental impact on the community. Meeting basic needs – shelter and food – happens for every 
client as part of admission. In fiscal year 2016-17, the Broward Partnership served over 97,000 nutritious 
meals, including 3 regularly scheduled meals served in the dining room, as well as bagged lunches and 
boxed dinners for clients who are not on campus during the regularly scheduled meals. A weekly menu is 
posted throughout the Center detailing the meals to be served and the service times. With a daily capacity 
of 230 individuals, effort is made to serve meals that are nutritious and take into consideration various 
dietary and religious preferences and medical considerations. The Center maintains a daily meal log book 
signed by all clients who receive a meal. 

 
Bus passes are provided to clients who have no means of transportation who are employed or who are 
seeking employment, to attend work or job interviews, as well as to attend medical appointments, legal 
and court appointments, housing search, or other appointments as needed in efforts to regain self-
sufficiency. Bus passes are issued to clients by case managers, who monitor each client’s progress towards 
their individualized service plans on at least a weekly basis. Clients who are actively engaging in job search 
activities are issued 7-day passes, which are re-distributed on a weekly basis upon meeting with the case 
manager and determining progress towards the client’s employment plan outcomes. Similarly, case 
managers distribute single-ride and 1-day passes to clients who have appointments for other supportive 
activities, such as medical appointments, legal and court appointments, and housing search. The case 
management department oversees the distribution and tracking of all bus passes. In fiscal year 2016-2017, 
4,209 1-ride bus passes and 1,362 7-day bus passes were distributed to clients, facilitating travel to and 
from jobs and job interviews, school and other training opportunities, as well as medical and other 
supportive services appointments. In the same period, 287 clients that obtained verifiable employment 
received a 31-day bus pass, ensuring transportation to assist in maintaining their employment. 

 
Funding will ensure 100% of clients admitted to the Center receive three (3) nutritious meals on a daily 
basis and that all clients have access to transportation to attend to various life needs, such as job 
interviews, employment, medical and legal appointments, and searching for housing opportunities within 
the community. 

 

The project’s goals, objectives, activities, timelines, and measurable outcomes are detailed in the Program 
Description Chart, and the evaluation plan is included in the Evaluation Chart. The Partnership’s programs 
benefit from a robust Quality Assurance (QA) Program, which monitors progress towards a host of 
performance indicators. The QA Committee meets on a monthly basis to review indicators, identify areas of 
concern, and implement process improvements. The QA plan identifies “outcome requirements” as one of 
nine key indicators that are reviewed by the QA Committee on an ongoing basis. This indicator specifically 
reviews all of the agency’s outcomes that are required by funders and external agencies. Results from the 
QA process are reported in a dashboard format to the full Board by the Board’s Program Services Committee 
on a monthly basis. This information is used to inform the Board and allows it to provide guidance at a high-
level to improve the delivery of services offered by the agency.  

CAM 18-0394 
Exhibit 5 

Page 10 of 178



12 

Section #5: AGENCY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT 

CAPACITY(limit of 7500 characters) 

 

Describe the history and current status of the applicant agency, specifically providing 

information which demonstrates the agency’s ability to successfully implement the program, 

including, if applicable, data from previous year’s funded grant. Include information as to 

whether the proposer operates in other cities, counties and/or states. Using the chart on the next 

page, (add additional rows as needed) identify the key agency personnel; identify their 

responsibilities in the project and key prior experience implementing similar projects. (Note: If 

funding will be used to hire staff, indicate such in the staff column and complete all but the last 

column) Note – Resumes of Program Administrator(s) and Chief Financial Officer are required in 

Attachment B5. 
 

The Partnership was founded in 1997 as the result of a strategic private/public alliance that brought 
together members of the corporate community, local political leadership, public service agencies, 
individual philanthropists and concerned citizens to address the burgeoning problem of homelessness in 
Broward County. The Partnership was charged by the Broward County Board of Commissioners with the 
task of raising the initial funds, overseeing construction, and subsequently operating a new emergency 
homeless shelter to replace the “Tent City” homeless encampment, where approximately 400 
individuals were living in deplorable conditions under makeshift tents provided by the City of Fort 
Lauderdale. On February 1, 1999, the Partnership opened the Central Homeless Assistance 
Center/Huizenga Campus (Center), a 57,000 square foot, 200-bed emergency shelter located in the City 
of Fort Lauderdale. Within three weeks of opening, the Partnership processed all of the Tent City 
residents who sought shelter at the Center or found alternative shelter for individuals who elected not 
to take advantage of its services. In 2014, the Partnership completed and dedicated a renovation of its 
existing campus to provide an additional 30 beds for women and children, the first facility expansion in 
its history. This important milestone brought overall capacity to 230 beds. More importantly, the 
expansion enabled the Partnership to get even more families, one of the fastest growing and most 
vulnerable populations of those experiencing homelessness, off the streets and assist them in 
transitioning to safe, stable housing. 

 
Since opening its doors in 1999, the Partnership has served more than 24,000 individuals and families 
experiencing homelessness through its comprehensive array of solution-focused services that address 
the problems that lead to homelessness. In addition to emergency shelter, meals, clothing and case 
management, the Partnership offers access to primary medical and dental care, mental health 
counseling, psychiatric services, substance abuse prevention, intervention and treatment, job search 
and placement services, parenting education, support groups and family therapy, and ancillary services 
as needed to assist those experiencing homelessness in acquire stable housing and self-sufficiency 
within a limited time-frame. The success rate for the 2016-2017 fiscal year is 49% for individuals and 
83% for families, which refers to the number of clients who achieve stable housing. 

 
Funding for the operation of the Center through Broward County’s Homeless Initiative Partnership 
has been renewed annually since the program’s inception. The Partnership has successfully operated 
and administered twelve Broward County Emergency Solutions Grants, formerly known as 
Emergency Shelter Grants. There were no negative financial or program findings identified during 
annual County monitoring activities. The agency has also successfully administered 14 City of Fort 
Lauderdale Emergency Shelter Grants (ESG), and six (6) Community Development Block grants. There 
were no negative financial or program findings identified during the City of Fort Lauderdale’s 
monitoring activities. The Broward Partnership completed its FY16 financial audit with no findings. 

CAM 18-0394 
Exhibit 5 

Page 11 of 178



13 

 

 

 

The Broward Partnership’s Chief Executive Officer has headed the agency since 1998 and has more than 
25 years of high-level executive management experience in the creation, development, re-engineering 
and administration of multi-million dollar human service organizations dedicated to delivering 
comprehensive services to those experiencing homelessness. The Chief Operating Officer has served as 
a non-profit executive for 10 years and has extensive experience in operations management, program 
development, and evaluation. The Chief Financial Officer has over twenty (20) years’ experience in the 
administration of private and governmental funding. The Director of Operations and Compliance holds a 
Master’s Degree in Urban Studies and a Bachelor’s Degree in Political Science and Social Science and has 
more than 12 years’ experience in public procurement, policy and program development, and 
compliance. 
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AGENCY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT CAPACITY CHART 
 
 

AGENCY STAFF TITLE PROJECT RESPONSIBILTIES PRIOR EXPERIENCE 

Frances M. Esposito Chief Executive Officer The CEO is responsible for the 
implementation of all policy decisions 
and initiatives as directed by the 
Board of Directors. The CEO supports 
the operation and administration of 
Board and its Committee structure by 
advising and informing the 
membership and by interfacing 
between Board and staff. 

More than twenty-five (25) years of experience in 
the administration of private and governmental 
funding: 

 Federal funding: Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD); Special Purpose Construction 
Grants - HUD; Department of Health and Human 
Services; Bureau of Primary Health Care - Health Care 
for the Homeless (330/340 awards/Federally 
Qualified Health Care Centers [FQHC]); Special 
Purpose Disaster Relief Grants; and National 
Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP); 

 State and local funding: Community Development 
Block Grants (CDBG); Emergency Shelter Grants 
(ESG); FEMA; Shelter Plus Care; and Dept. of Children 
and Families (DCF) 

Tom Campbell Chief Operating Officer The COO is responsible for facilitating 
the daily operations of the Broward 
Partnership. These operations 
include, but are not limited to, 
oversight of Healthcare Services, 
Program Services, Housing Services, 
QA/QI Program, Contract 
Management, Information 
Technology, Risk Management and 
Facility Operations along with 
departmental policies and procedures 
compliance and maintenance of 
accountability systems. 

More than eighteen (18) years of experience in the 
administration of private and governmental 
funding: 

 Federal funding: U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development (HUD); U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services; 
Bureau of Primary Health Care - Health Care for 
the Homeless 330(h) and Substance Abuse and 
Mental Health Services Administration 
(SAMHSA); National Emergency Food and 
Shelter Program (EFSP); and U.S. Department of 
Education, State and local funding: Community 
Development Block Grants (CDBG); Emergency 
Solutions Grants (ESG); FEMA; Dept. of Children 
and Families (DCF); Florida Department of 
Education; Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection; and Miami-Dade 
County Homeless Trust 
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AGENCY STAFF TITLE PROJECT RESPONSIBILTIES PRIOR EXPERIENCE 

Leisha Austin Chief Financial Officer The CFO provides accountability and 
direction of all financial activities and 
accounting functions.  Oversees 
financial management procedures and 
systems; manages annual budget 
process in close connection with 
executive staff; prepares annual 
budget for CEO and others as assigned 
for presentation to Board of Directors. 
In conjunction with the CEO, the CFO 
is responsible for all aspects of 
financial reporting and 
oversees financial management of 
the organization. 

Over twenty (20) years’ experience in the administration 
of private and governmental funding: 

- Federal funding: Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD); and National Emergency 
Food and Shelter Program (EFSP); 

- State and local funding: Community 
Development Block Grants (CDBG); Emergency Shelter 
Grants (ESG); FEMA; and Dept. of Children and Families 
(DCF) 

Julie Lauder Director of Operations & 
Compliance 

The Director of Operations & 
Compliance is responsible for 
assisting the Chief Operating Officer 
(COO) in the coordination and 
monitoring of the following areas: 
procurement and inventory, data 
quality management, operational 
contract management, commercial 
insurance management, QA/QI, 
emergency management, and fund 
administration. 

Over 15 years of experience developing competitive 
solicitations, social service programs, and proposals for 
public funds. Developed policies and procedures in 
procurement, contract management, credentialing, and 
compliance monitoring. Developed and facilitated 
procurement and contract management training 
programs and extensive experience managing federal 
and State of Florida public funds. 
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Section #6: FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

PLEASE ANSWER QUESTIONS A, B, C, D, E, F, G and H 

A. Describe the current financial stability of the agency and the systems, which are 
currently in place or will be put in place to monitor the use of, grant funds (limit 2000 
characters) 

The Broward Partnership’s Audited Financial Statements for the Year End September 30, 2017 
reflect no concerns and the current financial stability is good. The ratio of assets vs. liabilities is 
sixteen to one operationally. Cash reserves are maintained for operational shortfalls. The 
Partnership operates on a board-approved annual budget and reports monthly to the Board on an 
actual vs. budget comparison. This budget includes all program budgets, and each program is 
monitored by line-item to ensure compliance. The agency’s financial statements have been 
independently audited on an annual basis since operations began in 1999 with no material 
weaknesses noted regarding internal controls over financial reporting and operation. 

B. What is your agency’s annual revenue for the current fiscal year? (limit 15 characters) 

 
$6,536,721 

 
C. How much of that funding is being dedicated to this public service project? (limit 15 

characters) 

 
Approximately 7% 

D. What other goods and services (in kind) will be leveraged for this public service project? 

(limit 2000 characters) 

 
The Partnership will leverage approximately $394,150 in services to provide meals and bus passes 
to clients at the Center. 
 

E. Is this is a continuation grant? 

 

No. The Partnership has not received CDBG funding from the City of Fort Lauderdale since 
September 30, 2017. The Partnership was not eligible to apply for the 2017-18 fiscal year because 
three consecutive awards had been made in 2014-15, 2015-16, and 2016-17.  

F. Identify previous funding sources (including CDBG), and anticipated additional and/or 

matching fund sources needed to implement the project. If you are a past CDBG recipient, 

please include the outcomes from the last two (2) years you received CDBG funding, including 

the outcomes of the performance indicators. (Limit 7500) 

Previous funding sources include: 

 Broward County Government – operation of the Center; 

 City of Fort Lauderdale – CDBG (2009-2012 and 2013-2017); Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG) 
(1998–2013); 

 Florida Department of Children and Families – ESG (2014-2015 and 2015-2016); 

 Manne Family Foundation – Workforce Development/Job Retention Program (2005-present); 
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and 

 Various private foundation funding and contributions. 

 
Outcomes under the previous two fiscal years and, respectively, were attained as follows:  
2015-2016: 
#1: A minimum of 90% of participants identified as head of household will achieve at least one (1) 

case plan goal related to a barrier by targeted date: 90% 
#2: A minimum of 65% of unduplicated participants will exit to a HUD-defined positive destination 

when leaving the shelter: 50% 
#3: A minimum of 85% of participants served will receive a minimum of one (1) 7 Day incentive bus 

pass: 89% 
#4: A minimum of 90% of participants who obtain verifiable employment will receive one (1) 31 

Day incentive bus pass: 99% 
 

2016-2017 
#1: At least 80% of clients who are identified as head of household will achieve at least one (1) case 

plan goal as indicated on the individual service plan: 80% 
#2: at least 50% of the unduplicated clients will exit to stable housing when leaving the shelter: 49% 
#3: At least 50% of clients will receive a bus pass for travel to employment activities; medical 

appointments; legal obligations; housing search and other service plan oriented appointments: 
64% 

#4: At least 90% of clients who obtain verifiable employment will receive one (1) 31 Day incentive 
bus pass to ensure transportation/maintain employment: 100% 

G. Describe how this project can be sustained in subsequent years if CDBG funds are not 

allocated. If you are not funded this year for the entire amount requested, would the project 

still proceed? Where will you get the funds? Will the project be modified in any way, and if so, 

how? (limit 3500 characters) 

 

The award of CDBG funds to support costs associated with the delivery of meals and issuance of 
bus passes is critical to the Broward Partnership and the clients it serves. If funds are not awarded, 
although the project will continue to operate through other funding sources, fewer clients will be 
able to benefit as a result. The Partnership’s Resource Development division utilizes a wide variety 
of fundraising methods, including grants, solicitations to individuals and corporations, special 
events, and planned giving, to secure additional funding to ensure the sustainability of the 
program. To maximize resources and donations while minimizing cost, the Partnership works 
collaboratively with various vendors to secure donated or discounted food, supplies, bus passes 
and in-kind professional services. In the event of budget shortfalls, some services and program 
components that have demonstrated success in helping those experiencing homelessness achieve 
stable housing and self-sufficiency may temporarily be reduced or eliminated. 

 

H. Describe briefly how grant funds will be allocated to support the goals identified in the grant 

application. If grant funding will be used to support the organization’s infrastructure, explain 

how existing organizational funds will be reallocated for the project. (Limit 3500 characters) 

 

Upon receipt of an award, grant funds will be allocated to the purchase of food and bus passes 
within the agency’s chart of accounts under a specific grant profit and loss statement. Invoices for 
the purchase of food and bus passes are expensed under the grant profit and loss statement. 
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CDBG funding in the amount of $35,000 for food will support approximately 7,700 meals for 
Participants in shelter. Funding in the amount of $15,000 for bus passes will cover approximately 
50% of the agency’s bus pass expense 

 
I. Identify specific budget items to support the project, including those using current 

organizational funds. Include all personnel (Salary and Benefits) and major capital expenses. 

(Limit 3500 characters). 

 

Agency Budget Summary 

Salary & Benefits: $4,045,844 

Client Support and Supplies: $1,348,035 

Contractual Services: $363,940 

Professional Services: $106,978 

Occupancy: $476,141 

Insurance: $73,800 

G&A: $84,319 

Resource Development: $32,465 

Total: $6,531,522 

 
 

J. CDBG is a reimbursement program. Historically, agencies who are awarded CDBG funding 

may not receive the October, November, and Decembers reimbursement checks until 

January. What capacity does your agency have in place to cover the cost associated with the 

implementation of the program? (Limit 3500 characters) 

 

Funding for the Center’s core operations was secured in 1998 through Broward County’s Homeless 
Initiative Partnership has been renewed annually since that time.  The services for which CDBG funds 
are requested will be supported prior to reimbursement of the grant by public or private funds. The 
agency carries a sufficient cash balance in order to maintain all monthly operational costs, and the 
agency maintains an open line of credit with its financial institution. The Partnership’s Resource 
Development Department is charged with the task of securing additional funding to ensure the 
continuation of essential services that are not covered under existing grants and contracts. 
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Section #6: BUDGET SHEETS 
 

PUBLIC SERVICES BUDGET SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

ORGANIZATION: Broward Partnership for the Homeless, Inc. 

NAME OF PROJECT: Emergency Shelter Services and Operations 

NUMBER OF CLIENTS TO BE SERVED: 1,000 

FUNDING YEAR 2018-2019 

Date Submitted 02/15/2018 
 

 

Category 

Number 

Category Breakdown CDBG Funds Other Grants Other Funding Sources Total Funds 

1 Food $35,000 $393,150 Broward County HIP Section, Private 
Donations 

$428,150 

2 Transportation $15,000 10,000 Broward County HIP, Broward County 
Housing Finance Community Redevelopment 
Department, Private Donations 

$25,000 

3      

4      

5      

6      

7      

8      

9      

10      

 Total CDBG Funds $50,000    

Other Grant Funds  $403,150 

Grand Total  $453,15
0 

*PLEASE NOTE: CDBG funds cannot be used to purchase equipment, machinery, software or vehicles. 
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Section #6: PUBLIC SERVICES BUDGET ITEMIZATION SHEET 
 
 

ORGANIZATION: Broward Partnership for the Homeless, Inc. 

NAME OF PROJECT: Emergency Shelter Services and Operations 

 
 

Category 

Number 

Category Breakdown 

 

PLEASE PROVIDE A DETAILED DESCRIPTION FOR EACH 

BUDGET CATEGORY YOU ARE REQUESTING CDBG FUNDS 

FOR ELIGIBILITY REVIEW BY STAFF 

 

Category Amount 

 

CDBG Funds 

 

Other Funds 

1 Food for client meals $35,000 $393,150 

2 Transportation - client bus passes 15,000 10,000 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

*PLEASE NOTE: CDBG funds cannot be used to purchase equipment, machinery, software or vehicles. 
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Section #7: Performance Indicators 
 

Performance Indicators are used to track the impact of the program on those who receive the public 

service projects. Please provide a minimum of 3 and a maximum of 5 performance indicators that 

your agency proposes to track if awarded CDBG funding. If you are a previous CDBG recipient, 

please show the comparison of the previous performance indicators used? 

 

Performance indicators should focus on measuring the impact of the program on participants and/or 

how are the participants better now that the program was implemented. 

 
Example: 

 

1. At least 90% of Fort Lauderdale participants who obtain verifiable employment will receive one (1) 31 
day bus pass to ensure transportation/maintain employment. 

2. 85% of elderly individuals and caregivers will report an improvement in their home environment, 
their nutritional condition or feel less lonely as a result of weekly visits by a senior companion. 

3. 85% of parents attending the 10 week Parent Education Program will show improvement and remain 
outside the at-risk range on positive parenting beliefs and expectations measured through the AAPI-2 
Assessment. 

Performance Indicator 1 

At least 80% of clients who are identified as head of household will achieve at least one (1) case plan 
goal as indicated on the individual service plan. 

 
Performance Indicator 2 

At least 35% of unduplicated clients will exit to stable housing. 
 

Performance Indicator 3 

At least 50% of clients will receive a bus pass for travel to employment activities (job; job search; job 
interview); medical appointments; legal obligations; housing search and other service plan oriented 
appointments. 
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Section #7: PUBLIC SERVICES PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE 
 

 

 

ORGANIZATION: Broward Partnership for the Homeless, Inc. 

NAME OF PROJECT: Emergency Shelter Services and Operations 
 

 
IMPLEMENTATION STEPS OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP 

Purchase of food for client meals   X   X       

Purchase of bus passes for client 
transportation 

  X   X       
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ORDINANCE NO. C-12-03 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. C-97-21, AS 
AMENDED BY ORDINANCE NO. C-01-45, APPROVING THE 
USE OF PROPERTY AND A DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A 
HOMELESS ASSISTANCE CENTER LOCATED AT 920 NW ih 
AVENUE TO REVISE CONDITIONS OF THE DEVELOPMENT 
ORDER TO PERMIT SERVICES TO CLIENTS OF OTHER 
HOMELESS PROVIDERS; REVISING THE DATE FOR THE 
ANNUAL REPORT; DELETING PROVISIONS NO LONGER 
APPLICABLE AND REVISING OTHER CONDITIONS. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. C-97-21 adopted on June 17, 1997, the 
City Commission approved the use of property and a site plan for a Homeless Assistance 
Center located at 600 West Sunrise Boulevard (now known as 920 N.W. ih .Avenue) and 
granted relief from the dispersal requirement for a social service residential facility 
("Development Order" or "DO") pursuant to Section 47-47 of the Code of Ordinances of the City 
of Fort Lauderdale ("Code") or the Unified Land Development Regulations ("ULDR"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. C-01-45 adopted on October 2, 2001, 
the City Commission approved an amendment to revise conditions to permit child day care to be 
provided to children in other programs and to change the time for submitting an annual report; 
and 

WHEREAS, applicant, Broward Partnership for the Homeless, Inc. has 
submitted an application to amend the conditions of the DO to among other revisions, permit 
services to clients of other homeless providers, to revise the date for submitting the annual 
report, deleting provisions no longer applicable and revising other conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the City has reviewed the application for amendment to the 
conditions of the DO; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That SECTION 2. of Ordinance No. C-97-21 adopted on June 17, 1997 as 
amended by Ordinance No. C-01-45 adopted on October 2, 2001 is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

C-12-03 
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ORDINANCE NO. C-12-03 PAGE2 

C-12-03 

SECTION 2. That based on the findings provided in SECTION 1. of this 
Ordinance, the City Commission hereby approves the Application and the 
amendment to the conditions as follows: 

fat The site plan shall be subject to final DRC approval. 

f9j 
@1 If the southeast corner of the block is incorporated into the subject 

facility Center, the use shall be limited to parking, landscaping, and an 
accessory storage building only, subject to administrative review approval by 
the City's Planning Division Department of Sustainable Development. 

tcj 
.{Ql The lighting sRaU ee provided in the parKing area and along the 

entire exterior perimeter of the building-:- Lighting shall be provided to illuminate 
exterior walls and landscape areas such that, which was constructed with an 
average of 2 foot candles of illumination are displayed throughout the parking 
lot and along the entire perimeter of the building. or higher; shall be maintained 
in good operating condition and any new lighting shall be constructed to this 
standard, unless a higher standard :s required by the city building code. 

(e1 
.{g The Center and its services shall be made available first to serve the 

City of Fort Lauderdale's homeless, with priority placement given to homeless 
individuals and families within a two (2) mile radius of the Center. 

tat 
@ The Center's operator shall provide twenty-four (24) hour security 

both inside the facility Center and along its perimeter ad~cent to Sunrise 
Boulevard, N.VV. 7tR Avenue, N.\AJ. gtR Street and N.VV. 6 Avenue, at the 
expense of the Center operator, as deemed adequate in accordance with the 
most recent security plc;In approved by the City Manager. 

tft 
fru The Center's operator shall provide a curfew policy which will require 

residents to be within the Center and non-resident program participants to be 
off-site between the hours of (not later than) 8:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., except 
for provisions in the policy allowing for education or employment of the 
residents, or Center scheduled and structured activities, outside of the Center 
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ORDINANCE NO. C-12-03 PAGE 3 

C-12-03 

during these hours as necessary. 

t9t 
ill The Center's operator shall provide a complete list of "operational 

rules" for approval by the City Manager regarding prohibition of alcohol 
consumption, drug use, and unruly behavior, including an enforcement policy, 
which shall be available for review by the public during regular business hours. 

w 
.(g). The services provided by the Center may include, but not be limited 

to, case assessment, temporary housing and accessory services (laundry, 
mail, and phone service), social services, child care, food service, health care, 
job assistance and training, educational services, and other similar services. 
Services shall be provided only to residents and program participants amy, 
except child care may be provided to children of parents receiving homeless 
services from agencies other than the Center that are either located 'Nithin the 
City of Fort Lauderdale or receiving funds from the City; or to children who are 
homeless and are attending a school within the City. As used in this Ordinance 
program participants shall be defined as current residents of the facility Center. 
aM- previous residents who are in transitional housing else'Nhere and continue 
te receive services ef from the Center and clients of other homeless providers 
in Broward County. Program participants shall not include those on a resident 
waiting list or walk in clientele. A person shall not become a program 
participant by walking up to the Center. A referral shall be required prior to 
being admitted to the Center and all persons referred to the Center shall be 
transported to the Center. 

tit 
fb.l The health care referenced in item W .(g). shall include a quarantine 

area within the Center for the separation of those persons for which medical 
necessity dictates such segregated care. 

ffi 
ill The Center shall provide a telephone that shall be staffed twenty-four 

.{24} hours a day, seven .{7} days a week. 

(k) The County shall seek legislative support and attempt to obtain 
funding for the purpose of making improvements and enhancements to Sunrise 
and Sistrunk Boulevards. 
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ORDINANCE NO. C-12-03 PAGE4 

C-12-03 

B) 
ill The Center's operator shall provide the means for program 

participants to use public transportation or provide transportation services for 
referrals, appointments, and transfer of Center residents program participants. 
The Center's policy regarding transportation will not preclude normal 
pedestrian access and egress to bus stops, neariJy employment or other 
sanctioned activity. 

fmj 
00 The Center's operator shall establish a "no loitering" policy for 

residents and program participants to prevent loitering on the outside of the 
premises, and shall post signage indicating said policy within the premises and 
along all perimeters. 

w 
ill The Center shall provide for temporary residential stays only, with 

the goal to move resident participants into other housing within a period of 
approximately an average period of sixty (60) days. 

(et 
fml The Center may provide for temporary emergency shelter for non 

residents at the directive of the City Manager for cold weather, severe storms, 
or other emergencies. The Center may provide temporary emergency sl1elter 
for non-residents when: 1) the local overnight temperature forecast by the 
National Weather Service is 45 degrees F or below; 2) there is a hurricane 
watch. hurricane or tropical storm; 3) there is an emergency according to 
Broward County protocols; or 4) approved by the City Manager. 

W) 
fD.l The Center shall have trash containers at the entrance to the facility 

Center and along its perimeter. Handling and disposal of trash from said 
containers, shall be as specified in a trash maintenance plan approved by the 
City Manager. 

tq} The center's operator, with the assistance of the City and Gounty, 
shall arrange for the organization and appointment of a neighborhood advisory 
committee prior to the Center's opening. The neighborhood advisory 
committee shall consist of, at a minimum, one (1) representative of the City's 
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ORDINANCE NO. C-12-03 PAGE5 

C-12-03 

Police Department, one (1) representative of the City's Planning and Economic 
Development Department, one (1) representative from each of the City 
recognized neighborhood associations within 1,000 feet of the site, and one (1) 
area business O'Nner representing business interests and one (1) City 
Commissioner. The advisory committee shall meet as necessary and provide 
input for incorporation into an annual report as required in condition (r), below. 

{Ql During such times as the City Commission finds the community or 
the Center's operator would benefit from the input of a neighborhood advisory. 
committee. at the request and assistance of the City Commission. the Center's 
operator shall arrange for the organization of the committee. The neighborhood 
advisory committee will consist of the following appointees. 

The City Commission may appoint the following five (5) members: 

11 one (1) representative of the City's Police Department . 

.£} one (1) representative of the City's Sustainable Development 
Department. 

~ two (2) people residing within 2.000 feet of the Center, preferably from a 
City-recognized neighborhood association. and 

~ one (1) person from a business within 2.000 feet of the Center. 

The Center operator may appoint the following four (4) members: 

11 one (1) person residing within 2.000 feet of the Center. preferably from a 
City-recognized neighborhood association . 

.£} one (1) person from a business within 2.000 feet of the Center, 

~ one (1) person with experience in providing £ervices to the homeless, 
and 

~ one (1) person that has been formerly homeless. 

The advisorv committee shall meet as necessarv and provide input to the 
Center operator. In addition it shall provide input for incorporation into the 
annual report required in condition (p). 

CAM 18-0394 
Exhibit 5 

Page 27 of 178



ORDINANCE NO. C-12-03 PAGE6 

w 
{.Ql The Center's operator shall provide a report, with assistance from 

the County as necessary, The Center's operator shall submit an annual report 
to the City on or about January 31. The report shall be prepared by an area 
university or consultant, to the City Commission analyzing the operation of the 
Center in relation to the conditional use and public purpose use requirements 
of the City's Code and specifically in relation to tAe conditions set out herein Q.. 
e. h. i. j, k. & n. The first report shall be submitted within six (6) months of the 
Center's opening and thereafter shall be submitted on an annual basis 
beginning December 31, 2001. The report shall include input from the 
neighborhood advisory committee as identified above. 

tst 
.{g} If the Center is determined by the City at the time of annual review 

not to be in compliance with the conditions of the Conditional Use Approvals or 
Public Purpose Use Approval, the City Commission may, after notice and a 
public hearing, revoke the approval(s), and Broward County agrees to cease 
use of the facility as a homeless assistance center. Notice shall be given to the 
Center's operator, Broward County and property owners within three hundred 
(300) feet of the Center at least thirty (30) days prior to the public hearing. 

(t) The Conditional Use Approval shall e*pire on December 31, 2001, if 
Broward County has not opened a homeless assistance center 'Nith a minimum 
of two hundred (200) beds outside of the City limits of the City of Fort 
Lauderdale by that date, and Bro·nard County agrees to cease use of the 
facility as a homeless assistance center, unless the City Commission extends 
the date by motion at a City Commission meeting. 

SECTION 2. That except as amended, Ordinance No. C-97-21 adopted on June17, 1997, as 
amended by Ordinance No. C-01-45 adopted on October 2, 2001, is hereby ratified and 
reaffirmed. 

SECTION 3. That if any clause, section or other part of this Ordinance shall be held invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Ordinance shall not 
be affected thereby, but shall remain in full force and effect. 

C-12-03 
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ORDINANCE NO. C-12-03 PAGE 7 

SECTION 4. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be and the same 
are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect ten days from the date of 
final passage. 

PASSED FIRST READING this the 7th day of February, 2012. 

PASSED SECOND READING this the 21st day of Feb.ru.· a~1(012 . . "1 .. (' /1' ,· >,~ ,• . i 

/ / ' /'I ! ,;/ 

i I! , ... / .. / /// 
. j' ./~' ;> · .. // v·~A: .. 

ATTEST: 

CJ(crd;-k~ 
City Clerk 

JONDA K. JOSEPH 

L:\COMM2012\0rds\Feb 21 st\C-12-03.docx 
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SAM Search Results
List of records matching your search for :

Record Status: Active
DUNS Number: 025654083

Functional Area: Entity Management, Performance Information

ENTITY BROWARD PARTNERSHIP FOR THE HOMELESS, INC. Status:Active

DUNS: 025654083 +4: CAGE Code: 56E55 DoDAAC:

Expiration Date: Feb 10, 2018 Has Active Exclusion?: No Debt Subject to Offset?: No

Address: 920 NORTH WEST 7TH AVE
City: FORT LAUDERDALE State/Province: FLORIDA
ZIP Code: 33311-7229 Country: UNITED STATES

January 12, 2018 10:50 AM https://www.sam.gov/ Page 1 of 1
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 Broward Partnership – Board of Directors Roster 

OFFICERS 

 

Dodie Keith-Lazowick 
(Chair) 
President, Keith & Associates, Inc. 
301 East Atlantic Boulevard 
Pompano Beach, FL 33060-6643   
Office: 954-788-3400 Fax: 954-788-3500 
dkeith@Keith-Associates.com                             

 
 

1 
 

Kenneth A. Gordon, Esq. 
(Vice Chair)  
Partner, Brinkley Morgan 
One Financial Plaza 
100 SE 3rd Avenue 23rd Floor 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33394 
Office: 954-522-2200 Fax: 954-522-9123 
Kenneth.gordon@brinkleymorgan.com                                                                            

 
2 

 

 

Jan Klein 
(Treasurer) 
701 SE 8th Street 
Fort Lauderdale, FL  33316 
Office: 954-762-3071   
Jan.klein08@gmail.com                             

                                                                 
 
 

3 
 

 

Stephen Simmons, Esq.  
(Legal Chair) 
Vice President, Entertainment Law Center 
Mombach, Boyle, Hardin & Simmons, P.A 
100 NE 3rd Avenue Suite 1000 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 
Office: 954-467-2200 Fax: 954-467-2210 
ssimmons@mbhlawyer.com 

 
4  

 

 

John Castelli 
(Secretary) 
Broker/Senior Partner 
Castelli Real Estate Services 
2227 Wilton Drive 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33305 
Office: 954-563-9889 Cell:  954-661-2334  
Fax:  954-563-9883  
John@CastelliHomes.com 

5 

 
 

Joanne M. Snead  
(Resource Development Chair) 
Circle of Friends Foundation 
1736 SE 9th Street 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33316 
Home: 954-761-9349  

sneadjoanne@gmail.com 
 
 

6 

 

 

Debbie Orshefsky, Esq. 
(At Large) 

Partner, Holland & Knight LLP 
515 East Las Olas Blvd. Suite 1200  
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 
Office: 954-468-7871 
Fax: 954-463-2030 
Debbie.orshefsky@hklaw.com 

 
7                                                                     

 

 

Dr. Patrick A. Taylor 
(Past Chair) 
CEO, Holy Cross Hospital 
4725 North Federal Highway 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 
Office: 954-958-4837 Fax: 954-351-7873 
patrick.taylor@holy-cross.com 
 

 
8 

 

Daniel E. Taylor, Esq.  
(Past Chair)  
Tripp Scott 
110 Southeast 6th Street 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 
Office: 954-525-7500 Fax: 954-761-8475 
det@trippscott.com  
 

9                                   
 

 

Elliot P. Borkson, Esq. 
Elliot P. Borkson, PA 
(Past Chair)  
1313 South Andrews Avenue 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33316 
Office: 954-462-6360 Fax: 954-462-5225 
ellpremo@hotmail.com 
 

10 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

 

Dr. Herbert Brotspies 

Marketing Professor 
Nova Southeastern University 
H. Wayne Huizenga College of Business 
and Entrepreneurship  
7160 Montrico Drive 
Boca Raton, FL 33433 
Cell: 561-302-3060 
Hvb95@aol.com 

11 
 

 

Claudette Bruck 
Realtor 
Multiple Choice Realty Investments, Inc. 
12088 NW 27th Street 
Coral Springs, FL 33065 
Office: 954-722-0020 Cell: 954-562-2526 
Fax: 888-267-4045 
cbruck@bellsouth.net 

 
12                                                               

 

 

Mr. Richard Campillo 
Senior Executive | Fortune 100 | Board 
Advisor | Strategy | Executive Mentor & 
Coach 
2208 Sunrise Key Boulevard 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33304 
Cell: 954-371-9174 
Rcny99@gmail.com 
 

13 
 

Timothy Cronin  
Senior Vice President 
SunTrust Bank, Inc. 
515 East Las Olas Blvd. 7th Floor 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 
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BROWARD PARTNERSHIP FOR THE HOMELESS, lNC.

Financial Statements

September 30, 2016
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Accounting and Auditing
Taxation and Consulting
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222 Soulheast Tenth Street
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Broward Partnership for the Homeless, lnc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Broward Partnership for the Homeless, lnc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of September 30, 2016 and

the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend upon the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evídence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

¡nancial position of Broward Partnership for the Homeless, lnc. as of September 30, 2016 and the

changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

1

American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants
Florida lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants

Têlephone: (954) 467-31 OO

Facsimile: (954) 467 -2O8O
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(continued)

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 23,

2017, on our consideration of Broward Partnership for the Homeless, lnc.'s internal control over financiaf
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Broward
Partnership for the Homeless, lnc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

ROBBINS and LANDINO, P.A.
Certified Pu blic Accou ntants

'fZol>ln:,rw a4'tàt Lan"d,í¿na, ? .A.

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
January 23,2017
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BROWARD PARTNERSHIP FOR THE HOMELESS, INC.
Statement of Financial Position

September 30, 2016

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 493,188
lnvestments 1,485,079
Grants and Contracts Receivable 416J84
Other Receivables 5,690
Prepaid Expenses 48,305
Other 2,779

Total Current Assets 2,451,225

Non-Current Assets
Property and Equipment, Net 4.075,916

Total Assets $ 6.527.141

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 218,529
Line of Credit 150,000

Total Current Liabilities 368,529

Net Assets
Unrestricted 5,756,836
Temporarily Restricted 348,444
Permanently Restricted 53,332

Total Net Assets 6,158,612

Total Liabilities and Net Assets S 6.527.141

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3
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BROWARD PARTNERSHIP FOR THE HOMELESS, ING.
Statement of Activities

Forthe Year Ended September 30, 2016

Unrestricted Net Assets
Support and Revenues

Government Grants and Contracts
Contributions and Grants
Fundraising Events, Net of Costs of $67,654
lnvestment lncome
Contributed Services and Materials
Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Total Support and Revenues

Expenses
Program Services
General and Admin istrative
Fundraising

Total Expenses

Change in Unrestricted Net Assets Before Depreciation

Depreciation

Change in Unrestricted Net Assets

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Contributions and Grants
lnvestment lncome
Net Assets Released From Restrictions

Change in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Permanently Restricted Net Assets
Contributions

Change in Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Ghange in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

$ 3,227,807
823,152
376,165
116,499

1,029,238
495,464

6,068,325

5,000,465
562,791
558,927

6.122,183

(53,858)

(231,981)

(285,83e)

614,373
23

Ø95.464)

118,932

7,000

7,000

(159,907)

6.318,519

$___6J58.t12

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BROWARD PARTNERSHIP FOR THE HOMELESS, INC.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Gash Flows from Operating Activities
Change in Net Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash from Operating Activities:

Depreciation
Unrealized Gain on lnvestments
Realized Gain on lnvestments
Bad Debt
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease in Grants and Contracts Receivable
lncrease in Other Receivables
lncrease in Prepaid Expenses
Decrease in Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from lnvesting Activities
Purchases of lnvestments
Proceeds from Sales of lnvestments
Purchases of Property and Equipment

Net Cash Flows from lnvesting Activities

Gash Flows from Financing Activities
Payments on Line of Credit

Net Cash Flows from lnvesting Activities

Net Change in Cash

Cash, Beginning of Year

Cash, End of Year

Supplemental lnformation
Cash Paid During the Period for lnterest

$ (159,907)

231,981
(74,059)
(15,818)
40,979

45,972
(5e0)
(445)

08.112\
(9,999)

(1,616,294)
1,657,352

Ø9,914)
(8,856)

02,ooo)
02,000)

(90,855)

584,043

$ 493.188

$_rJ52

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BROWARD PARTNERSHIP FOR THE HOMELESS, INC.
Statement of Functional ExPenses

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Program General and
Services Administrative

Payroll and Employee Benefits
Residents' Clothing
Supplies
Food Services
MedicalServices
Contractual Services
Utilities
Resident Housing Assistance
Professional Fees
Residents' Education
lnsurance
Repairs and Maintenance
Office
Bad Debt
Telephone
Kitchen Supplies
Resident Transportation
Printing and Reproduction
Meetings and Seminars
Computer Supplies
Miscellaneous
Postage and Delivery
Traveland Mileage
Advertising
Dues and Subscriptions

Total

Fundraisinq

g 479.477

Total

$ 3,311,579
541,590
344,698
237,321

63,750
344,444
252,027
307,778
197,96g
152,000
71,898
62,743
43,541
40,979
40,174
19,371
27,386
14,640
19,965
4,621

10,503
3,271
2,700
3,206
4,030

$ 6.122.183

$ 2,500,945
541,590
341,717
237,321

63,750
344,444
245,244
307,778

51,737
152,000

67,122
57,592
4,245

32,364
19,371
27,386

1,003
69

249
1,607

436
1,845

650

$___5-00tur65

$ 331,157

2,981

4,522

118,479

4,776
4,929

29,531
40,979
3,858

8,300
3,442
3,913
3,641
1,527

558

198

$__562J9_1

2,261

27,752

222
9,765

3,952

5,337
16,454

459
5,255
1,308

297
3,206
3,182

$_____558p22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BROWARD PARTNERSHIP FOR THE HOMELESS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2016

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization: Broward Partnership for the Homeless, lnc. ("BPHI") is a non-profit organization
whose stated mission is to reduce homelessness by promoting independence and self worth
through advocacy, housing, and comprehensive services. This is accomplished through the
operation of a 230-bed residential facility in Broward County, Florida (the "Center") that provides
job training, computer literacy, life skills case management, education, child care, mental health
counseling, medical care and related emergency services for needy individuals and families.
Broward Partnership also operates several supportive housing programs that permanently house
individuals and families throughout Broward County.

Date of Management's Review: ln preparing the financial statements, BPHI has evaluated
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through January 23, 2017 , the date
that the financial statements were issued.

Basis of Accounting: The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting. Using this method, revenues are recognized when earned and

expenses are recognized when incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: BPHI considers all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Grants, Gontracts, and Other Receivables: Grants, contracts and other receivables are stated
at the amount management expects to collect from the outstanding balances. Management
provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an

adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual
accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to the receivable.
Changes in the valuation allowance have not been materialto the financial statements.

lnvestments: lnvestments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all

investments in debt securities are stated at fair market value in the statement of financial position.

Property and Equipment: Purchased property and equipment is carried at cost and donated
assets are recorded at fair market value on the date of the gift. Depreciation is computed using

the straight-line method. When assets are retired or otheruvise disposed of, the cost or donated
value and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the statement of financial position

and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in the statement of activities.

Contributed Services and Materials: Contributions of donated services that create or enhance
non-financial assets or that require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing

those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are recorded at
their fair values in the period received. Contributed materials are also recorded at their fair values
in the period received.

Financial Statement Presentation: Net assets and revenues, gains, and losses are classified
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions as follows:

Unrestricted - lncludes amounts which have no external restrictions and which are available for
support of current operations and includes amounts already spent for property and equipment
acquisitions.
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BROWARD PARTNERSHIP FOR THE HOMELESS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2016

'1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Temporarilv Restricted - lncludes amounts which have donor-restrictions that can be fulfilled by
actions of BPHI pursuant to those restrictions or restrictions that expire by the passage of time.

Permanently Restricted - lncludes amounts that are subject to restrictions of the gift instruments
requiring that resources be maintained permanently.

Gontributions: Contributions are recorded as unrestricted or temporarily restricted support
depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Time-restricted and purpose-
restricted contributions are required to be reported as temporarily restricted support, unless the
donor expressly stipulates otherwise. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished), temporaríly restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions. Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in
unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is

recognized.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Cash equivalents, grants and contracts receivable, other
receivables, prepaid expenses, other current assets, and accounts payable and accrued
expenses are reflected in the financial statements at cost which approximates fair value because
of their short-term nature.

Functional Allocation of Expenses: The costs of providing the various programs and other
activities have been detailed in the statement of functional expenses and summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities. Salaries and other expenses which are associated
with a specific program are charged directly to that program. Labor and other expenses which
benefit more than one program are allocated to the various programs based on the relative
benefit provided.

lncome Taxes: As a non-profit corporation, qualified under Section 501(cX3) of the lnternal
Revenue Code, BPHI is exempt from corporate income taxation on income related to its exempt
function. Therefore, no provision for income taxes has been made in the accompanying financial
statements.

During the year ended September 30, 2016, BPHI has not incurred any interest or penalties on its
income tax returns. BPHI's tax returns are subject to possible examination by the taxing
authorities. For federal income tax purposes the tax returns essentially remain open for possible
examination for a period of three years after the respective filing deadlines of those returns.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estímates.
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BROWARD PARTNERSHIP FOR THE HOMELESS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2016

¡NVESTMENTS

At September 30, 2016, investments are comprised of the following:

Government Securities
Corporate Bonds
Equities
Mutual Funds

Amount %

$ 203,102
215,863
748,571
317,543

$--_rLl85-029 _____l_00_

$ 46,558
15,818
74,059

(1e,e13)
s 116.522

14
15
50
21

3.

4.

lnvestment return is summarized as follows for the year ended September 30, 2016:

lnterest and Dividends
Realized Gain on lnvestments
Unrealized Gain on lnvestments
Custodial Fees

Leasehold lmprovements (See Note 7)
Transportation Eq u ipment
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

Family Services Program
Dental Services
Children's Center
Workforce Development
Special Event

GRANTS AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Management believes that all receivables are collectible; therefore, BPHI has not included a
provision for uncollectible accounts. Any accounts deemed uncollectible are charged to expense
when the determination is made. As of September 30, 2016, grants and contracts receivable of

9416,184 are scheduled to be collected within one year.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

At September 30, 2016 property and equipment consisted of the following:

Accumulated Net Book
Cost Depreciation Value

$ 6,910,785 3,028,297 3,882,488
98,144 98,144

1,418,060 1.224,632 193,428
$---9.426p89 $---4*35tL023 $-11.075*916

Depreciation expense tor 2016 was functionally allocated as follows:

Program Services
General and Administrative
Fundraising

RESTRICTIONS ON ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes:

$ 138,953
144,461

16,970
12,688
35,372

s 348.444

I
,Ø¿//¿;,¿.t .r/ Lnl¿nø 9."ú

€cr tr/æ / 9a //r c .Ø¿ ¿ e m tm t¿

$ 202,983
13.919
15.079

$____23_1-9et
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BROWARD PARTNERSHIP FOR THE HOMELESS, ING.
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2016

5. RESTRICTIONS ON ASSETS (continued)

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted
purpose or by occurrence of other events specified by donors as follows:

Purpose and Time Restrictions Accomplished:
Dental Services
Family Services Program
Children's Center
Workforce Development

Total Restrictions Released

6. CONTRIBUTED SERVICES AND MATERIALS

The value of contributed services and materials are as follows:

Revenue
Clothing
Supplies
Education
Food
Fundraising Event Goods and Services
Professional Fees

Expenses
Program Services
General and Administrative
Fundraising

$ 221,079
219,871

2,202
52,312

$_____r19tule1

$ 548,744
176,175
152,000
94,511
46,170
11,638

$___l*029238

$ 971,430
11,638
46.170

$___i1.029238

7.

Donated volunteer services with an estimated value of $219,000 were not recognized in the
financial statements because they did not meet the criteria for recognition.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lease Commitments: Leasehold improvements (See Note 4) relate to the construction of a
homeless assistance center in Broward County, Florida. The center was constructed by BPHI
under an agreement with the County using funds raised from private contributions as well as
County funds. The land, comprising approximately 3.41 acres on which the center was
constructed, is owned by Broward County and leased to BPHI at an annual rent of $1 per year in
conjunction with BPHI's operating agreement with the County. The lease requires that the
premises be used solely as a homeless assistance center providing temporary emergency
housing for at least 200 persons. The initial lease term was for five years commencing in January
1998. Since 2007, BPHI's operating agreement with the County and the related lease agreement
have been renewed on an annual basis. Last fiscal year the lease was extended to September
30,2018. The operating agreement has been renewed through September 30,2017.

10
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BROWARD PARTNERSHIP FOR THE HOMELESS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2016

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Management believes that renewal of the operating and lease agreements with the County is

reasonably assured and, as a result, the leasehold improvements (primarily consisting of
amounts related to building the center) are being amortized over their expected useful lives (40
years for the center). ln the event that the operating and lease agreements with the County were
to terminate, the unamortized amount of leasehold improvements (approximately $3.9 million at
September 30, 2016) would be removed from the financial statements and there would be a
corresponding reduction in net assets.

Contingencies: Furniture, fixtures and equipment purchased with restricted assets would revert
to the donor/grantor upon termination of the lease agreement and/or cessation of operation of a
homeless assistance shelter.

Support: BPHI receives the majority of its support from various government grants.

LINE OF CREDIT

BPHI has a $500,000 bank line of credit. The line of credit is due on demand and matures on
September 20,2017. lnterest is at the bank's prime rate. There was a $150,000 outstanding
balance on the note at September 30, 2016.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

BPHI maintains cash accounts which, at times, may exceed insured limits. At September 30,

2016, BPHI had approximately $500,000 in cash, of which approximately $108,000 was in excess
of the applicable guarantee agency.

Financial instruments which potentially subject BPHI to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash equivalents and unsecured receivables. BPHI's ability to collect these
receivables is dependent upon economic conditions and the financial condition of its customers.
BPHI has not experienced significant losses related to receivables. Management believes no
additional credit risk is inherent in BPHI's receivables.

BPHI's investments are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risk.
Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments, it is at least reasonably possible that
changes in the values of investments will occur in the near term and that such changes could
materially affect the amounts reported in the statement of financial position.

RETIREMENT PLAN

On October 1, 1998, BPHI began a Section 403(b) retirement plan. ln order to be eligible to
participate in the plan, employees must be at least 18 years old, work 1,000 hours or more per
year and have completed 1 year of service. Additionally, BPHI may annually elect to match from
0% to 3o/o of an eligible employee's annual compensation up to the amount of the employee's
elective deferral. For the year ended September 30, 2016, BPHI contributed $54,463 to the plan.

11
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BROWARD PARTNERSHIP FOR THE HOMELESS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2016

11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Accounting Standards Codification 820 ("ASC 820") Fair Value Measurements establishes a
framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC 820 are described below:

Level 1 lnputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identicalassets or
liabilities in active markets that BPHI has the ability to access.

Level 2 lnputs to the valuation methodology include:

o Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
o Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

: I I 3 : I i;:i'"[ï"ili:5 i tff ñ: li1,:f :i ::i:i:iilJi ii xi'."j;: [Ë'i]ll,n", o 

"."by correlation or other means.

lf the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 lnputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured
at fair value on a recurring basis:

Government Securities, Gorporate Bonds and Equities: Shares valued at the closing price
reported on the active market on which the shares are traded.

Mutual Funds: Valued at the net asset value of shares held by BPHI at year end as reported on
the active market on which the shares are traded.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of
net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while BPHI believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments
could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

12
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BROWARD PARTNERSHIP FOR THE HOMELESS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2016

11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

The following tab-le sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, BPHI's assets at fair value
as of September 30, 2016:

Assets:
Government Securities
Corporate Bonds
Equities
Mutual Funds

Total Level I Level 2 Level 3

$ 2CI3,1CI2 $ 203,102 $ $
215,863 215,863
748,571 748,571
317,s43 317.543

Total Assets at Fair Value $-fu185-0zg $-fu185-0zg $-
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Accounting and Auditing
Tâxation and Consulting

,Ø,o.//¿;ry1 a,n/ -%n/toø .q..ú
âut/o / Øo//-,Øoooantantt

222 Soulheast Tenth Street
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPL¡ANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Broward Partnership for the Homeless, lnc

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller of the United States, the financial statements of Broward Partnership for the
Homeless, lnc., (the "BPHI'), (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position
as of September 30, 2016 and the related statements of activities, cash flows and functional expenses for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated January 23,2017.

lnternal Control over Financial Reportinq

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the BPHI's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the BPHI's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the BPHI's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant defíciencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

Gompliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the BPHI's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported u nder Gove rn me n t Au d iti n g Sta n d a rd s.

14

American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants
Florida lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants

Têlephone: (954) 467-310O
Facsimile: (954) 467 -2O8O
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

(continued)

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the BPHI's internal

control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering the BPHI's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ROBBINS AND LANDINO, P.A.
Certified Pu blic Accou ntants

ll"ol¡I¡i,vt y ø'tt^d/ Land¿:,nø; ? .A.

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
January 23,2017
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Frances M. Esposito

fesposito@bphi.org 

SUMMARY 

Over twenty-five (25) years of executive level experience providing strategic leadership and direction in 
the public sector human services environment. A proven track record in the successful start-up and re-
engineering of multi-million dollar non-profit entities, the development and facilitation of strategic 
planning, board development, public  advocacy, risk management, fund development  and 
governmental relations.  Presenting a strong, polished image to relevant stakeholders, articulate and 
adept at the implementation of innovative special needs programming, the design and execution of fund 
development programs and the cultivation of diverse public/private constituencies. Longstanding 
relationships with and in-depth knowledge of private and governmental resources.   

PROFESSIONAL BACKGROUND 

Broward Partnership, Inc. 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 1998 - Present 
- Chief Executive Officer of a multi-million dollar human services organization specializing in the delivery
of comprehensive services and permanent housing to homeless men, women and families.  Oversaw the
construction, outfitting and opening of the Broward County Central Homeless Assistance
Center/Huizenga  Campus.  Responsible for the development and implementation of strategic planning
and best practice operational plans in compliance with all federal, state and local regulatory
requirements. Responsible for policy implementation and direction of all fiscal, programmatic, human
resources, fund development and risk management practices. Function as an advocate and liaison to all
external communities including but not limited to private and public sector funders at local, state and
federal levels.

Camillus House, Inc. 
    and Camillus Health Concern, Inc. 
 Miami, Florida 1992 - 1998 

- Chief Operating Officer of two (2) multi-million dollar social service agencies dedicated to the
indigent and homeless population of Miami-Dade County. Responsible for strategic  planning, 
budgeting, risk management, contract negotiations, facility planning, human resources, IT, operations 
management, new construction oversight, the development and administration of a Federally Qualified  
Healthcare Center (FQHC), Drug & Substance Abuse Rehabilitation Programming, two (2) Transitional 
Housing Sites and Emergency Service Programming. 

Fine Jacobson Schwartz Nash Block & England, P.A., 
Miami, Fort Lauderdale and Jacksonville, Florida       1984 - 1992 

- Project Director of the Miami-Dade County Community Homeless Assistance Project – August –
December 1991 (CHAP) - As the “lent executive” to the Governor of Florida’s multi-million dollar state & 
county initiative, successfully orchestrated the closure of a 550 person homeless encampment situated 
under Miami’s Interstate 395 overpass. CHAP served as the project model for the creation of the non-
profit agency - Chapman Partnership, Inc.  
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- Director of Marketing (1990 -1992)
Responsible for the Business Development and Public Relations Programs for 3 office locations throughout
the state of Florida.

- Director of Personnel and National Recruitment Administrator (1987-1990)
Responsible for all human resource functions (professional & support staff) and direction of the

national recruitment campaign.  Supervision of 55-member secretarial staff. 

- Assistant Administrator (1984-1987)
Responsible for administrative oversight of finance, facility operations and support staff.

Ruden Barnett McClosky Schuster & Russell, P.A. 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 1974 - 1984 

 Civil litigation secretary; Certified Commercial Litigation Paralegal (CLA) 

EDUCATION 

On-going Leadership Series of Executive Skills Development –  
Bank of America  - Branch Bank & Trust - Community Foundation of Broward County 

Strategic Perspectives in Nonprofit Management, July 2001 
Executive Education Program 

Harvard Business School, Cambridge, Massachusetts 

Bachelor of Science – Summa cum Laude 
Barry University, Miami Shores, Florida 
Awards: Most Outstanding Graduate 

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES 

• Broward Workshop – Urban Core Committee - 2015 – Present

• Housing Council of Broward County - 2011 – Present

• Nonprofit Executive Alliance of Broward County – Vice President - 2008 – Present

• Broward County Homeless Initiative Partnership – BOD Member - 1999 – 2014

• Broward Health - Healthcare for the Homeless Advisory Board - 1998 – 2003

AWARDS 

• Broward County Crime Commission – T. Magill Community Service Award - 2016

• The Jim Moran Foundation Award – October 2014

• Lifetime Achievement Award – 2012 Finalist – 211 Broward, Inc.

• Circle of Excellence Award - Greater Fort Lauderdale Chamber of Commerce - 2006

• Realtor Association of Greater Fort Lauderdale International Women’s Day - 2006

• Woman of Distinction Award, March of Dimes - 2001

• Miami-Dade Homeless Trust - Outstanding Contributions to the Continuum of Care - 1999
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T O M    C A M P B E L L 
 

 
Broward Partnership for the Homeless January 2016 – present 
A non-profit organization that provides housing and social services to more than 1,300 persons experiencing 
homelessness every year. 

Chief Operating Officer 

 Work with the CEO and leadership team to execute and implement agency-wide policies to ensure 
quality control, cost efficiencies, and organizational compliance. 

 Responsible for day-to-day activities of all programs, including direct supervision of program and 
housing services, information technology, facilities, maintenance, and contracts management.  

 Assist with annual budget preparation and related financial forecasts; analyze and translate program, 
financial, and administrative data into effective tactical and strategic processes.  

 Develop systems to monitor, manage, and administer contracts; counsel with the CEO and CFO on 
financial and/or legal matters associated with forms of agreement that obligate the agency. 

 Act as primary liaison on program-related projects associated with independent consultants and/or 
auditors enlisted to provide program or agency-wide evaluations.   

 Act as an Interim in the absence of the CEO. 

 
Camillus Health Concern, Inc. July 2011 – January 2016 
A Federally Qualified Health Center in Miami that serves approximately 6,000 poor and homeless patients every year. 

Vice President, Operations, Programs & Services (previously Assistant Executive Director) 

 Responsible for all day-to-day activities of the health center, including direct supervision of patient 
registration, scheduling, clinical support, substance abuse treatment programs, information technology, 
facilities, and capital improvement projects.  

 Provided leadership to a multi-disciplinary team of providers, professionals, and paraprofessionals. 

 Developed, in concert with the CEO, the health center’s plans and programs in evaluating and advising 
on the impact of long range planning and changes in work requirements for staff.   

 Developed and delivered analysis reports for various Committees of the Board of Directors.  

 Enhanced, developed, implemented, and enforced policies and procedures to improve the overall 
quality of health center services and to ensure compliance with regulatory agencies, third party payers, 
and grantors.  

 Developed departmental budgets and monitored expenditures, purchasing, capital expenditures, 
contracts, audits, and grants.  

 Developed and maintained relationships with community partners, funding sources, and vendors.  

 Personally secured $750,000 in new funding in fiscal year 2013-14, resulting in an approximate 15% 
increase in annual budget and staffing levels.  

 Acted as an Interim in the absence of the CEO. 

 

The School Board of Broward County, Florida January 2007 – December 2010 
The nation’s 6

th
 largest school district with 255,000 students, 288 schools, and an annual operating budget of $5B. 

Grants Specialist  

 Maintained approximately $160M in formula and competitive grant funds by writing and submitting 
proposals, developing budgets, crafting and submitting fiscal and programmatic reports, and ensuring 
compliance with guidelines and regulations. 

 Reviewed contracts and grant award agreements; interpreted requirements for executive management 
and program staff; facilitated audits and site visits to ensure programmatic and fiscal compliance. CAM 18-0394 
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 Developed and administered training presentations for grant proposal development and grants 
management to various levels of staff and management.  

 Supervised Office Manager and Budget Support Specialist positions and all functions. 

 

City of Miami, Florida September 2005 – January 2007 
A metropolitan municipal government serving 433,000 residents with an annual operating budget of $500M. 

Grant Writer  

 Maintained approximately $20M in competitive grant funds by writing and submitting proposals, 
developing budgets, crafting and submitting fiscal and programmatic reports, and handling compliance 
issues; personally secured a total of $8.1M in grant funding in one year. 

 Assisted with the development of city programs, including social and homeless services, neighborhood 
services, parks and recreation, public facilities, community development, agriculture, and construction.  

 Served as the designated “Change Agent” overseeing the department’s strategic objectives, SMART 
goals, and balanced scorecard activities.  

 Served as the liaison between the department and Oracle programmers during the development of a 
Grants module for the City’s new Oracle-based financial information system.  

 

Camillus House, Inc., Miami, Florida (multiple positions) February 1999 – September 2005 
A multidisciplinary agency providing housing, mental health and substance abuse treatment, job training, social 
services, and health care for more than 12,000 persons experiencing homelessness every year. 

Director of Evaluation & Quality Assurance / Corporate Compliance Officer March 2004 – September 2005 

 Developed and implemented a quality monitoring and improvement program to ensure compliance 
with accreditation standards; supervised interdepartmental subcommittees. 

 Conducted audits and assessments of various program-specific and organization-wide operations and 
made recommendations for improvements.  

 Supervised Grants Manager and all grants functions. 

 Oversaw Corporate Compliance Program designed to prevent, detect, and respond to fraud, misuse of 
funds, and unethical conduct. 

Grants Manager November 1999 – March 2004 

 Maintained approximately $4M in competitive grant funding by writing proposals, developing budgets, 
crafting and submitting fiscal and programmatic reports, and handling compliance issues. 

 Developed processes and procedures for accounts payable, accounts receivable, and grant billing to 
ensure compliance with regulations and timely submission of required documentation. 

 Standardized and computerized all grant reporting forms; reports frequently distributed to other 
agencies by funding sources as “model reports.” 

Volunteers & Special Events Coordinator February 1999 – November 1999 

 Determined organizational and programmatic needs for volunteer services. 

 Interviewed, screened, oriented, trained, placed, supervised, and evaluated all volunteers. 

 Coordinated all public relations and fund raising events; conducted facility tours. 
 

Education 

 

  

  

Florida Atlantic University  
Master of Business Administration 

University of Florida  
Bachelor of Science Degree in Agriculture (Major:  Microbiology & Cell Science) CAM 18-0394 
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SUMMARY 

 
Leisha M. Austin, CPA, MTax is a multi-disciplined accounting professional who has 
previously served as a senior auditor with a "Big 4" international accounting firm, 
consulting manager for a non-national accounting firm and has significant relevant 
experience in nonprofit and governmental accounting and financial reporting serving in 
both CFO and controller positions. As a complement to her core accounting, auditing and 
tax experience, Leisha has a demonstrated track record in financial consulting for 
nonprofit and government entities in the areas of: internal controls; budget preparation, 
review and analysis; cost allocation and indirect rate structures; management audits and 
operational reviews; financial planning analysis and forecasting; accounting policies and 
procedures; grants management; and financial project controls for major capital projects. 

 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

 
The Broward Partnership 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 

Chief Financial Officer 2016 to Present 
Responsible for overall financial management including but not limited to: accounting; 
billing; budgeting; cash management, compliance, reporting and payroll.   Assists the CEO 
on strategic matters related to budget management, cost benefit analysis, forecasting 
needs and securing new and renewal funding.  Oversees financial management systems, 
policies and procedures.  Serves as the lead staff person for the completion of the annual 
budget process. Presents financial reports at meetings of the finance committee, executive 
committee and board of directors.  Manages execution of financial statement audits and 
preparation of the IRS and DOL annual filings. Manages relationships with financial 
institutions and vendors.  Supervises finance and medical records staff. 
 
Family Central, Inc. 
North Lauderdale, Florida 

Chief Financial Officer     2014 to 2016 
Provided overall responsibility and accountability for the operations of the Finance, 
Information Technology, Human Resources, Broward Facilities and Nutritional Services 
departments. Presented financial reports at meetings of the finance committee and board 
of directors. Prepared agency-wide, programmatic and grant specific budgets and 
amendments. Maintained banking relationship and ensures compliance with all covenants 
associated with the line of credit. Prepared financial analysis and special reports as 
needed to provide informed decision making associated with strategic planning and 
change management including but not limited to: pro forma financial statements, what if 
scenarios, and cash flow projections. Oversaw the completion of the annual financial 
statement, 403(b) pension plan, and program specific audits; and preparation of the IRS 
Form 990 and DOL Form 5500. Served as plan administrator for the agency's 403(b) 
pension plan. Responsible for financial policies and procedures. Evaluated results of 
insurance RFPs conducted by insurance broker and determines final rate structure for 
employer share and employee share of benefits. Managed transition from in-house IT 
staff to outsourced managed IT solution. Utilized team-based approach to managing staff 
across departments. 
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Sharpton, Brunson & Company, P.A. 

Miami, Florida 

Manager 2006 to 2011 
Performed audit and business advisory services for public, private and non-profit entities 
in the areas of: financial and compliance auditing, grants management and accounting; 
budget preparation, review and analysis; forensic accounting; business process 
improvements; financial planning analysis and forecasting; rate development and cost 
recovery; operational and program performance reviews; and program financial controls. 
Supervised engagement teams to produce project deliverables. Developed and 
implemented creative solutions for expanding client base and enhancing professional 
staff development. 

 

Housing Opportunities Project for Excellence, Inc. 
Miami, Florida 

Vice President of Finance 1998 to 2006 
Managed all aspects of the Agency's financial operations including accounting, 
budgeting, reporting, cost allocation, and cash management. Responsible for the 
accounting system including year-end closing and financial statements. Supervised the 
accounting staff. Prepared the Agency's budget for approval by the Board of Directors. 
Prepared annual and interim financial reports and participated in Board of Directors 
meetings. Facilitated the execution of independent audits. Ensured compliance with the 
federal rules and regulations related to grants and contracts. 

 
Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands Department of Finance 
St. Thomas, Virgin Islands 

Deputy Commissioner of Finance 1995 to 1998  

Served as Acting Commissioner of Finance and performed requisite duties in the 
absence of the Commissioner and Assistant Commissioner. Managed the day-to­ day 
operations of the Department including over 150 employees in six divisions. Developed 
and implemented government-wide initiatives to serve the public. Managed the execution 
of the first independent audits of the Government. Testified before the Legislature of the 
Virgin Islands as the Department's representative on government finance and operations. 
Approved departmental annual budget submission. Provided technical assistance to other 
governmental agencies. Performed various personnel responsibilities including 
evaluations, interviews and conflict resolution. Reviewed pending legislation for fiscal 
compliance. 
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Ernst & Young LLP 

Boston, Massachusetts and St. Thomas, Virgin Islands 

Senior Auditor 1992 to 1995 
Audited various entities' financial statements in the manufacturing, mutual fund, 
healthcare, insurance and professional services industries. Performed financial statement 
and compliance audits in the governmental sector in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards and the Single Audit Act. Coordinated audit engagement activities with 
client and firm personnel. Planned, supervised and reviewed the work of audit teams. 
Managed engagement economics including budgeting, billing and collections. Performed 
analyses of company operations. Researched financial statement disclosures to ensure 
compliance with generally accepted accounting principles, Security and Exchange 
Commission regulations and other comprehensive basis of accounting. Advised clients on 
accounting and internal control matters. Utilized strong oral and written communication 
skills to promote client relationships. 

 
Staff Auditor 

Performed audit procedures on various account balances in association with the audit of 
financial statements. Reviewed and evaluated internal control systems and proposed 
recommendations for improvement. Assisted firm in various recruitment activities. 
 
CERTIFICATION 

Certified Public Accountant  
Licensed by the State of Florida 

 
EDUCATION 

Nova Southeastern University, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 2006 
Master of Taxation 

 
Northeastern University, Boston, Massachusetts 1992  

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, Cum Laude. Dual major in accounting 
and business management. 
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Julie Lauder 

Qualifications Summary 

jmlauder@msn.com 

Professional experience working in highly sensitive environments demanding strong organizational, 
managerial, writing, and interpersonal skills. Trustworthy, ethical, mission-oriented, and committed to 
superior customer service. Confident and poised in interactions with individuals at all levels. Detail-oriented 
and resourceful in completing projects. Able to multi-task effectively. Capabilities include: 

• Grant Writing • Contract Procurement
• Government/Contractor Relations • Tracking & Monitoring Systems
• Negotiation • Curriculum Development

Professional Experience 

� 
Concordia Behavioral Health, Inc. il"O
Director of Provider Relations (November 20 - Current)

• Contract Management
• Policy Development 
• Training Facilitation

Responsible for the management of a network of behavioral health contracts valued at $42 million (annual). 
Develop annual Network Management Plan, policies, procurement solicitations, operating procedures, 
training programs, and monthly and quarterly reports for the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating 
Officer. Lead Provider Relations Department in negotiating and developing contracts; conducting 
compliance reviews that resulted in an identification of over $1.1 million in disallowed expenditures; and 
identification and facilitation of trainings and meetings to improve contractor collaboration and 
communication. Successfully developed and implemented a Credentialing program for clinicians, 
practitioners, and behavioral health agencies. 

State of Florida - Department of Juvenile Justice, Office of the Assistant Secretary 
Policy Analyst (May 2005- November 2012) 
Develop solicitation documents and contracts for all probation services including civil citation, diversion, day 
treatment, juvenile assessment centers, and mental health and substance abuse services. Serve as Lead 
Negotiator for Probation and Community Intervention contracts. Prepare and review memoranda of 
understandtng with partners including law enforc�ment, state agencies, the judiciary, and social services 
agencies. Led effort to establish contract management and monitoring policies and procedures for juvenile 
justice contracts (conducted systems analysis; develop and facilitated a Contracting training for over 100 
probation officers, and developed policies, procedures, and monitoring instruments). Provide technical 
assistance to contract managers to resolve contractor disputes, and ensure quality of service and 
adherence to federal and state laws, rules and regulations and the Department's contract and policies and 
procedures, including audit requirements and the submission of financial reporting packages. Member of 
the Florida Single Audit Act Team, and the DJJ Contract and Grants Improvement Initiative. 

Grant Developer (Temporary Special Assignment) (October 2008 - May 2011) 
Researched opportunities for grant funding, developed proposals (totaling in excess of $50 million), and 
served as the lead in all grant capture and grant management efforts undertaken by the Department. 
Prepared reports, offered recommendations concerning likelihood for success, and reviewed opportunities 
to determine applicability to the Department's mission and strategic plan. Coordinated with partners to 
cultivate opportunities for collaboration. Served as the Department's representative on the State of Florida 
Grants Consortium. 

Julie Lauder 
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Contract Manager (March 2003 - May 2005) 
Responsible for the management and monitoring of 34 juvenile justice contracts in the South Region 
(annual value of $11 million). Offered recommendations to the Regional Director and technical assistance 
to the chief probation officers in the development of contracted services needs assessments. Assessed 
contractor performance, identified deficiencies, prepared monitoring reports, and determined the 
effectiveness of corrective action plans. Processed invoices, reviewed contractor reports, and provided 
technical assistance to contractors. Certified Quality Assurance Peer Reviewer. 

State of Florida - Department of Children and Families, District 1 O 
Contract Manager (May 2002 - March 2003) 
Developed, negotiated and managed social services contracts with an annual value of over $35 million. 
Provided contracting technical assistance and policy clarifications to district program staff, contractors, and 
local partners. Prepared monitoring reports, and reviewed invoices prior to payment processing. 
Participated in contract monitoring efforts and conducted follow up monitoring visits to assess contractor 
performance related to correction of deficient items and successful implementation of corrective action 
plans. Facilitated the resolution of contractor concerns and communicated instructions from senior 
managers. 

State of Florida - Department of Corrections, Region IV 
Operations and Management Consultant Manager (April 2001-December 2001) 
Specific duties included preparation and presentation of the monthly construction project updates and 
maintenance budget for fourteen major correctional institutions to the Bureau Chief and Regional Director. 
Provided supervision of clerical staff and communicated directives to the maintenance superintendents and 
project managers from the Regional Director. Coordinated with wardens in the preparation of Purchase 
Orders to ensure the timely delivery of maintenance supplies and equipment to correctional institutions. 

American Express 
Research Analyst/Human Resources Assistant (contracted position) (September 1999- March 2001) 
Conducted research in best practices for the Benchmarking and Best Practices Office, assisted in the 
development of a research database, and prepared a quarterly newsletter for worldwide distribution. 
Coordinated research site visits with best in class organizations, and assisted senior management in 
developing studies and surveys to assess opportunities for improvement. Facilitated employee screening 
(administration of tests, initial application review) and facilitated New Employee Orientation. 

Bayless 98 for Secretary of State 
Campaign Manager(-2008}. \C\'\� 
Successfully led and managed a campaign for Arizona's Secretary of State. Prepared correspondence for 
the candidate, responded to media requests, planned fundraising activities, ensured campaign compliance 
with financial reporting requirements, represented the candidate at public events, and established a 
statewide network of campaign volunteers. 

INTERNSHIPS: 

EDUCATION: 

CERT/FICA TIONS: 

Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta (Atlanta, Georgia) 
Public Affairs 

Bachelor of Science, Political Science - Florida State University 
Bachelor of Science, Social Science - Florida State University 
Master of Science, Urban Studies - Georgia State University 

Contract Management, State of Florida (2006) 
Contract Negotiation, State of Florida (2008) 

Julie Lauder 
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2017 Broward County Point-in-Time Summary of Results 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Homeless Subpopulations 

 Sheltered Unsheltered Total Percent 

Families (Households) 130 7 137 6.5% 

Unaccompanied Youth (Individuals) 127 27 154 6.3% 

Chronically Homeless Individuals 169 394 563 22.9% 

Chronically Homeless Families 5 2 7 0.3% 

Chronically Homeless Families 
(Total Persons in Household) 

11 19 30 1.2% 

Adults with Serious Mental Illness 157 255 412 16.8% 

Adults with Substance Use Disorder 219 291 510 20.8% 

Adults with HIV/AIDS 92 20 112 4.6% 

Victims of Domestic Violence 240 1 241 9.8% 

Total Number of Veterans 92 105 197 8.0% 

Foster Care 14 76 90 3.7% 

Total Households and Persons  

 Sheltered Unsheltered Total Percent 

 Emergency Transitional Safe Haven    

Total Number of Households 730 448 35 884 2,097   

Total Number of Persons 886 572 35 957 2,450   

Number of Children (under 18) 160 94 0 15 269 11.0% 

Number of Persons (18-24) 75 67 1 28 171 7.0% 

Number of Persons (over age 24) 651 411 34 914 2,010 82.0% 

 Sheltered Unsheltered Total Percent 

Gender Emergency Transitional Safe Haven    

Female 352 190 15 215 772 31.5% 

Male 534 379 20 737 1670 68.2% 

Transgender 0 3 0 3 6 0.3% 

 Sheltered Unsheltered Total Percent 

Ethnicity Emergency Transitional Safe Haven    

Non-Hispanic 803 499 33 872 2207 90.1% 

Hispanic 83 73 2 85 243 9.9% 

       

 Sheltered Unsheltered Total Percent 

Race Emergency Transitional Safe Haven    

White 278 247 20 537 1082 44.2% 

Black 595 312 14 399 1320 53.9% 

Asian 4 2 0 4 10 0.4% 

American Indian 2 3 0 12 17 0.7% 

Native Hawaiian  1 0 0 3 4 0.2% 

Multiple Races 6 8 1 2 17 0.7% 
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Background 
 

Introduction  

The data presented in this report provides an updated point-in-time snapshot of the homeless population in 
Broward County. The purpose of this report is to share the results of the count with the community, to provide 
a discussion of the methodology used, and to offer analysis of the findings. The U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) and Florida's Office on Homelessness require the count. The count includes all 
sheltered and unsheltered homeless in Broward County.  Due to changes in the definition of homelessness and 
the process of counting the homeless in past years, we argue for caution in making generalizations across 
different time periods. A person is considered homeless only when he/she resides in one of the places described 
below: 

1. In places not meant for human habitation, such as cars, parks, sidewalks, abandoned buildings (on the 
street). 

2. In an emergency shelter. 
3. In transitional or supportive housing for homeless persons who originally came from the streets or 

emergency shelters. 
4. In any of the above places but is spending a short time (up to 30 consecutive days) in a hospital or other 

institution. 
5. Is being evicted within a week from a private dwelling unit and no subsequent residence has been 

identified and lacks resources and support networks needed to obtain housing. 
6. Is being discharged within a week from an institution, such as a mental health or substance abuse 

treatment facility or a jail/prison, in which the person has been a resident for more than 30 consecutive 
days and no subsequent residence has been identified and the person lacks the resources and support 
networks needed to obtain housing. 

7. Is fleeing a domestic violence housing situation and no subsequent residence has been identified and 
lacks the resources and support networks needed to obtain housing. 
 

This year's Broward County Point-in-Time (PIT) Count, shows that the total number of sheltered and unsheltered 

persons experiencing homelessness in Broward County has increased by 6 percent, from 2,302 to 2,405. The 

number of unsheltered persons increased by 22.4 percent from 782 to 957. 

An additional 286 people were counted as “at-risk” of homelessness, which is generally defined as an individual 

or family seeking permanent housing but who stayed the previous night at an institution; a hotel paid by self; a 

jail, prison or detention center; a family member or friend’s house; were facing imminent eviction; in foster 

care; or people who are losing their primary nighttime residence, which may include a motel or hotel or a 

doubled up situation, within 14 days and lack resources or support networks to remain in housing. 
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Methodology 
 

Broward County’s 2017 PIT count was conducted using a Complete Census Count, night of count – complete 
census, night of count – known locations, and service-based count and was composed of the following 
components: 
 

1. Paper Survey:  trained teams of over 200 volunteers and 100 law enforcement officers administered a 
comprehensive survey to self-identifying homeless individuals, primarily in outdoor locations throughout 
the county. This is a population survey, meaning all possible homeless individuals were surveyed. The 
survey elicited information about the homeless population’s demographics, history of homelessness, 
living conditions, barriers to overcoming homelessness, and use of homeless services. Additionally, 
people at non-HMIS (Homeless Management Information System) participating agencies were asked to 
complete the survey. However, not all non-HMIS participating agencies participated in the count.  Copies 
of the 2017 PIT survey instruments is presented at the end of the report. 

 
2. Sheltered HMIS:  Per HUD requirements, an enumeration of homeless individuals residing in emergency 

shelters and transitional housing on the date of the count using the Homeless Management Information 

System (HMIS) data was created. The Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) is an electronic 

database used to hold information on the characteristics and service needs of homeless people in the 

U.S. The program was developed in the 1990s in response to a mandate by Congress requiring states to 

collect data in order to receive funds from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

to address homelessness. Broad utilization of HMIS may help provide a consistent and accurate snapshot 

of a region’s homeless population, including a population count and information on service use. HMIS 

also provides a measurement of the effectiveness of homeless programs as it helps track the number of 

chronically homeless clients and placements into permanent housing. 

 

3. Youth Matter Magnet Event: focusing specifically on young adults and youth under the age of 25, the 

Youth Matter magnet event was held on the Saturday following the 3-day Point-in-Time Count.  The 

event featured 5 vendors, a mobile driver’s license unit and an HIV testing bus.  The event was held at a 

park known to be frequented by individuals experiencing homelessness and was in a centralized location 

in Fort Lauderdale.   

Data Collection 
Survey interviewers emphasized the anonymity and confidentiality of the survey to encourage respondents to 
be candid in their responses. Interviewers assured respondents that these responses would be reported only as 
general findings and would not be traceable to any one individual. 
 

Data Analysis 
To avoid potential duplication of respondents, the survey queried respondents’ initials and date of birth, so that 
duplication could be avoided without compromising the respondents’ anonymity. Upon completion of the 
survey effort, an extensive verification process was conducted to eliminate potential duplicates. This process 
examined respondents’ date of birth, initials, gender, and ethnicity. In addition, a question was placed on the 
survey that asked respondents if they had completed the survey earlier in the day. Lastly, the final survey data 
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was cross-tabulated with the HMIS to determine if duplicates existed in sheltered and transitional housing 
counts. For data analysis purposes, simple descriptive statistics were calculated for all survey responses. 

Definitions 
• Chronic Homelessness - refers to a homeless individual or family head of household with a disability 

who lives either in a place not meant for human habitation, a safe haven, or in an emergency shelter, 
or in an institutional care facility if the individual has been living in the facility for fewer than 90 days 
and had been living in a place not meant for human habitation, a safe haven, or in an emergency shelter 
immediately before entering the institutional care facility. The individual also must have been living as 
described above continuously for at least 12 months, or on at least four separate occasions in the last 
three years, where the combined occasions total a length of time of at least 12 months. Each period 
separating the occasions must include at least seven nights of living in a situation other than a place 
not meant for human habitation, a safe haven, or in an emergency shelter 

• Emergency Shelter - is a facility whose primary purpose is to provide short-term crisis shelter for 
homeless persons. 

• Individual - refers to people who are not part of a family during their episode of homelessness. They 
are homeless as single adults, unaccompanied youth, or in multiple-adult or multiple-child households. 

• Persons in Families - are people who are homeless as part of households that have at least one adult 
and one child. 

• Sheltered Homeless Persons - are individuals who are staying in homeless emergency shelters, 
transitional housing programs, or safe havens. 

• Transitional Housing Program - is a type of housing where homeless people may stay and receive 
supportive services for up to 24 months, and which are designed to enable them to move into 
permanent housing. 

• Unsheltered Homeless Persons - include people experiencing homelessness who live in places not 
meant for human habitation, such as the streets, abandoned buildings, vehicles, or parks. 

• Homeless Age Groups include - children who are under 18, youth who are 18 to 24, and adults who 

are 24 to 60, and 60 or older. 
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Results 
The following section provides an overview of the results of the 2017 Homeless Survey. One measure that is not 
clearly measured in our PIT count are people who are “doubled-up.” People who live with friends or family due 
to economic need are considered “doubled-up.” Doubled-up people have an elevated risk of experiencing 
homelessness. In fact, prior to their entrance into the homeless shelter system, the most common living 
situation for adults in families is living with friends or family.1  
 

  

  

1 National Alliance to End Homelessness--SOH 2012: Chapter Three - The Demographics of Homelessness 

2 Christian, Julie, et al. "Intentions to move from homelessness to social inclusion: The role of participation beliefs, attitudes and prior behaviour." 

Social Inclusion 4.4 (2016). 

 

Use 
Services

Attitude

Participatory 
Beliefs

Research suggests that the 

homeless experiences and 

ethnicity were much less 

important in shaping future 

intentions to use homeless 

services. A greater emphasis 

should be placed on participatory 

beliefs - indicating that the 

homeless are primarily motivated 

by what they perceive the 

benefits of provided services.2 
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Homelessness in Broward County 2010-2017 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Florida County Comparisons 2016 
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1,796

1,520
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2011
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2013
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2015

2016

2017
Sheltered 

Unsheltered 

__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, 

transitional shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 

2016 annual report -- council on homelessness 

1,332

1,817

2,302

2,450

2,777

4,235

Palm Beach County

Hillsborough County

Broward County - 2016

Broward County - 2017

Pinellas County
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Unemployment and Homelessness in Broward County 
 

 

  Unemployment 

Homelessness 

Population of Broward County 

__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, 

transitional shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 

2016 annual report -- council on homelessness. 

1,770,895 1,793,488 1,815,729 1,837,562 1,859,168 1,880,477 1,909,632

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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Homeless Demographics in Broward County 
  

Female, 
32%

Male, 67%
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10%

Non-
Hispanic/

Latino, 90%
__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, 

transitional shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 

2016 annual report -- council on homelessness. 
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Facets of Homelessness in Broward County 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2%

44%

54%

12%

71%

8%

10%

33%

66%

9%

63%

28%

20%

50%

7%

23%

52%

48%

Other

White

Black

Over 60

24-60

18-24

Under 18

Female

Male

Broward County 2016 2017 PIT

2016 PIT

__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, 

transitional shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 

2016 annual report -- council on homelessness. 

 

 

42% suffered 

blow to the 

head 

33% attacked 

while homeless 

8% are 

veterans 

9% were in 

foster care 
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__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, 

transitional shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 

2016 annual report -- council on homelessness. 

Homeless Reason 

Job 

44% 

Hospital 9%
Jail or Prison 16%

Psychiatric Facility 3%

No Discharge 72%

Discharge 
Location

Medical 

 11% 

Natural 

Disaster  

1% 

Forced  

11% 

Immigrant 

1% 
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Facets of Chronic Homelessness in Broward County 
  

__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, 

transitional shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 

2016 annual report -- council on homelessness. 

 

 

24% 

Chronically 

Homeless 

18%

23%

15%

0%

20%
21%

20%

0%

18%

22%

17%

24%

2014 2015 2016 2017

United States Chronic Homeless Florida Chronic Homeless Broward County Chronic Homeless

N/A N/A 

 

 

HIV/AIDS 

5% 
Substance 

Abuse 

21% 

Mental Health 

17% 

Learning 

3%  

 

Physical 

21% 

 

DISABILITIES 
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Length of 

Homelessness 

1 Week = 4%

1-4 Weeks = 4%

4-12 Weeks = 12%

12-52 Weeks= 21%

52+ Weeks= 63%

 

  

Homeless  

Episodes 

One episodes 26% 

Two episode 2% 

Three episodes 12% 

Four + episodes 60% 

__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, 

transitional shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 

2016 annual report -- council on homelessness. 

CAM 18-0394 
Exhibit 5 

Page 144 of 178



Homeless Families in Broward County 
  

Homeless Count

2,450

Adult + Child

N = 413

Sheltered 

93%

Unsheletered

7%

Child Only

N = 14

Sheltered 

93%

Unsheltered 

7%

Adult Only

N =2,023

Sheltered

54%

Unsheltered 

46%

Homeless Children

With No Family

N = 14

Race

Black 

N = 9

White 

N = 1

Multiple 

N = 3

Gender

Female 

N = 8

Male 

N = 5

Ethnicity

Hispanic 

N = 12

Non-Hispanic 

N = 1

__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, 

transitional shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 

2016 annual report -- council on homelessness. 
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Homeless Assistance in Broward County 
 

  

41% of the 

unsheltered report 

using homeless 

services in Broward 

County 

__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, 

transitional shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 

2016 annual report -- council on homelessness. 

46% have no income 

26% receive 

 public assistance 

9% unknown income 

15% earned income 
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Unsheltered Homeless City Data in Broward County 
  

City Woke Up Count (%)  City Administered Count (%) 

Coconut Creek 3 (0%)  Coconut Creek 51 (6%) 

Coral Springs 2 (0%)  Coral Springs 0 (0%) 

Dania 13 (1%)  Dania 6 (1%) 

Davie 24 (3%)  Davie 11 (1%) 

Deerfield Beach 15 (2%)  Deerfield Beach 8 (1%) 

Fort Lauderdale 452 (51%)  Fort Lauderdale 334 (37%) 

Hallandale 9 (1%)  Hallandale 9 (1%) 

Hillsboro Beach 1 (0%)  Hillsboro Beach 0 (0%) 

Hollywood 135 (15%)  Hollywood 155 (17%) 

Lauderdale-by-the-Sea 1 (0%)  Lauderdale-by-the-Sea 0 (0%) 

Lauderhill 11 (1%)  Lauderhill 87 (10%) 

Lighthouse Point 0 (0%)  Lighthouse Point 1 (0%) 

Margate 9 (1%)  Margate 10 (1%) 

Miramar 7 (1%)  Miramar 4 (0%) 

Oakland Park 24 (3%)  Oakland Park 38 (4%) 

Pembroke Park 1 (0%)  Pembroke Park 0 (0%) 

Pembroke Pines 4 (0%)  Pembroke Pines 0 (0%) 

Plantation 15 (2%)  Plantation 13 (1%) 

Pompano Beach 129 (15%)  Pompano Beach 156 (17%) 

Sunrise 5 (1%)  Sunrise 3 (0%) 

Tamarac 12 (1%)  Tamarac 3 (0%) 

West Park 0 ()  West Park 3 (0%) 

Wilton Manors 9 (1%)  Wilton Manors 0 (0%) 

__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, 

transitional shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 

2016 annual report -- council on homelessness. 
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Unsheltered Homeless Maps  
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At Risk for Homelessness in Broward County 
 

  

2%

6%

1%

5%

18%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

Psychiatric Facility Jail, prison, detention Rehabilitation Service Hospital Foster Care

__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, transitional 

shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 2016 annual report -- 

council on homelessness. 

Poor Mental 

Health 6% 

Economic 

Difficulty 18% 

Childhood 

Adversity 18% 
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Sheltered vs. Unsheltered 
 

  

Families Sheltered

N = 386

Race

Black 

84%

White 

14%

Other

2%

Gender

Female 

66%

Male 

34%

Families Unsheltered

N = 27

Race

Black 

33%

White 

67%

Other

0%

Gender

Female 

48%

Male 

52%

Individuals Sheltered

N = 1094

Race

Black 

N = 45%

White 

N = 54%

Other

N = 1%

Gender

Female 

65%

Male 

34%

Other

1%

Individuals Unsheltered

N = 929

Race

Black 

N = 57%

White 

N = 41%

Other

N = 2%

Gender

Female 

22%

Male

77%

Other

1%__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, transitional 

shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 2016 annual report -- 

council on homelessness. 
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Trends of Homelessness in Broward County 
  

__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, 

transitional shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 

2016 annual report -- council on homelessness. 
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2,450
2,425

1,493
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2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Total Homeless
Sheltered Homeless
Unsheltered Homeless
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650

413

586

386

64
270

200

400

600

800

1,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Homeless People in Families
Sheltered Homeless People in Families
Unsheltered Homeless People in Families

377

563

171

169
206

394

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Chronically Homeless
Sheltered Chronically Homeless
Unsheltered Chronically Homeless,

__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, 

transitional shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 

2016 annual report -- council on homelessness. 
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Homeless Facts 
 

Homeless persons have a much higher incidence of a range of secondary characteristics.   

 Prior homelessness: 35-67% of currently homeless persons have experienced at least one prior, separate 
episode of homelessness. 

 Single, unattached adult males: single, adult males make up about 70% of the adult homeless population 
but fewer than 10% of all adults living below the poverty line.2,3,4 

 Solitary women with children: solitary women head about 80% of all homeless families.  

 Unattached youth: youth separated from parents or a foster care situation with few resources has a 
strong likelihood of ending up homeless or at risk for homelessness. 

 Mental illness: about one-third of homeless adults have spent time in a mental institution. 

 Alcohol and/or other drug problems: about one-third or more of homeless adults suffer from chronic 
alcohol problems and 10-20% have other drug dependency problems. 

 Health problems: more than 25% of the homeless population is too disabled to work and about 40% 
report themselves in poor health, compared to 20% of the total United States poor population. 

 Institutional histories: homeless and most-at-risk persons are much more likely to have a history of 

mental hospitalization, inpatient treatment for alcohol and/or other drug problems, foster care, or time 

spent in jail or prison. 

 Weak support networks: homeless and most-at-risk persons have far less extensive or helpful support 

networks of family and friends who might provide them with housing or other assistance. 

  

2 Preventing homelessness: Meeting the Challenge. The Urban Institute, Feb. 2002. 
3 The Prevention of Homelessness. National Alliance to End Homelessness, Sept. 1992. 
4 Destination Home. A Ten-year Journey to End Homelessness. http://www.destination-home.info/Homelessness/at-risk.htm 
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VI-SPDAT Results 
  

__________ 

Data source: Point-in Time (PIT) count and HMIS data. Sheltered includes all unduplicated person from emergency shelters, 

transitional shelters, safe haven, women-in-distress and housing opportunities for persons with AIDS (HOPWA). State of Florida 

2016 annual report -- council on homelessness. 

 

957 
Unsheltered

453 Completed 
VI-SPDAT

313 Qualify for 
Assessment

31%

• Not recommended 
for a housing 
support 
assessment

62%

• Recommended 
for a rapid 
rehousing 
assessment

7%

• Recommended for 
a permanent 
supportive 
housing 
assessment
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2017 Point-in-Time Homeless Count Survey 
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Point-in-Time Count and Housing Inventory Count Methodology 

Recommendations- Ensuring Compliance with Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD) Requirements 
 

Count Forms:   

The Point-in-Time (PIT) Committee recommends that Homeless Initiative Partnership (HIP/HUD Collaborative 

Applicant) in collaboration with the PIT Coordinator retain the responsibility for creating the survey data 

collection forms and ensuring those forms meet HUD PIT and Housing Inventory Count (HIC) standards. 

 

Each year, in anticipation of the annual PIT and HIC, HUD releases updated information detailing the required 

information that all CoCs must collect as part of the Homeless PIT and HIC processes.  This collection of 

information must be standardized and coordinated across the entire CoC.  Due to the technical nature of 

creating the forms and processing the data to meet HUD’s requirements, HIP/HUD Collaborative Applicant, 

Broward HMIS Lead Agency, Broward Regional Health Planning Council, and NOVA University has the capacity 

(and the experience) to perform this critical component of the PIT and HIC planning process.  Therefore 

HIP/Collaborative Applicant has determined that this aspect of the count/planning process remain with Broward 

HMIS Lead Agency, Broward Regional Health Planning Council, NOVA University and they will be responsible for 

presenting the forms (and any associated recommendations) to the Broward FL-601 Continuum of Care.   

 

Sheltered Count: 

The PIT and HIC Committee recommends that the sheltered portion of the annual count continue to be 

organized and overseen utilizing the same structure/method utilized in previous counts – consistent with 

applicable HUD requirements. 

 

Every year, in anticipation of the annual count, the Broward FL-601 Continuum of Care, through the HIP/HUD 

Collaborative Applicant, Broward HMIS Lead Agency, Broward Regional Health Planning Council, NOVA 

University, and PIT Shelter Committee work with shelters to ensure quality data can be pulled from the HMIS 

system or are provided with paper Sheltered Surveys to enumerate persons in shelter on the night assigned for 

the count.  Due to the existing structure, the PIT Committee recommends those who have historically been 

responsible for this aspect of the count/planning process retain this responsibility and any associated 

recommendations to the Broward FL-601 Continuum of Care.   

 

Unsheltered Count: 

Consistent with best practice and highest PIT Count efficacy, the PIT Committee recommends that the Broward 

FL-601 Continuum of Care approve a combination of Night of and Service-Based multi-day Census (complete 

coverage) methodology for the count. 

 

“A census count is an enumeration of ALL homeless people or a distinct subset of homeless people (e.g., 

households with adults and children) in CoCs.  This counting approach provides a direct and complete count of 

CAM 18-0394 
Exhibit 5 

Page 157 of 178



all people and their characteristics, does not require any estimates and can be used as a benchmark for future 

PIT counts.” A multi-day Service-Based Census provides a more reasonable time frame to reach homeless people 

in large urban areas at known locations where persons experiencing homelessness are known to receive 

services.  

 

“Sampling is a partial enumeration of the entire homeless population (or subset of the homeless population) 

and can be more feasible for some CoCs or for certain required data (e.g., substance abuse).”   

 

- Sampling is a complex, time intensive process, especially for the data processors. 

- Any sampling methodology must go through HUD for approval prior to use.  (HUD wants to verify the 

validity of the methodology.) 

- HUD states, “It is preferable for CoCs to conduct a census count when practicable, as it is by definition 

the most complete and accurate information available.”   

- Historically, the Broward Continuum of Care has utilized a census (complete coverage) count as the 

methodology. 

 

 

Below is a box listing out pros and cons for the different possible methodologies the Broward FL-601 Continuum 

of Care can choose to approve for use during the 2016 Point-in-Time Survey.  When considering the various 

options please consider the following questions, which come from the HUD 2014 Point-in-Time Count 

Methodology Guide: 

 

- How large a geographic area does the CoC cover?  

- Does the CoC have very limited resources relative to the geographic area of the CoC to count and 

survey all unsheltered people on the night of the count?   

- Does the CoC believe there might be people experiencing homelessness that enumerators are not 

likely to identify during an unsheltered count or are there other barriers that could limit the ability 

of enumerators to conduct interviews during the night of the count?”  
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 Night of Count Service-Based Combination Night of and 
Service-Based 

 
PROs: 

-Minimal chance of 
duplication 
 

-More likely to capture 
information on those who 
do not frequent traditional 
“homeless” services 
-Can be conducted for up to 
7 days after the designated 
count night 

-HUD recommended approach 
for those CoCs that cover a 
large geographic location. 
-Can be conducted for up to 7 
days after the designated 
count night 
-It provides a more reasonable 
time frame to reach homeless 
people in the most rural parts 
of the state 

 
CONs: 

-Enormous geographic area 
to cover in a very small 
window of time. 
-Requires a large # of 
volunteers to accomplish 
-More likely to miss those 
who do not have contact with 
shelters/services and sleep in 
unknown locations 

-Greater possibility of 
duplication 
-You cannot assume that 
everyone you are 
encountering is homeless. 
-Unless it is coupled with a 
street count, it is likely to 
miss unsheltered homeless 
people who do not use any 
services. 
-HUD strongly recommends 
that service-based counts 
only be used to supplement 
night of count approaches.   

-It takes more time/work to 
coordinate 
-Must do a more extensive 
interview to better avoid 
duplication of information. 

(Please note: all information in this chart comes from the HUD 2014 PIT Count Methodology Guide) 
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Attachment B10 

Instructor Certificates / Approved Curriculum 

 

The Partnership is requesting funding for essential services (food for client meals and bus 

passes), therefore, this attachment is not applicable. 
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